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Independent Auditor Report

To the Members of Apeejay Surrendra Park Hotels Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone Ind AS financial statements of Apeejay Surrendra Park Hotels
Limited (the ‘Company’), which comprises the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021, the Statement of Profit and
Loss, including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of
Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the standalone Ind AS financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of cur information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
standalone Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended
(“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2021, its loss including other
comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the ‘Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements’
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant fo our audit of
the financial statements uader the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone
Ind AS financial statements.

Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern

We draw attention to Note 54 in the Standalone Ind AS financial statements which indicates the impact of COVID
19 on the business operations of the Company and the Company’s current liabilities exceeded its current assets as
at the balance sheet date. These conditions, along with other matters as set forth in Note 55, indicate the existence
of a material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Emphasis of Matter
We draw attention to Note 55 to the Standalone Ind AS financial statements which describes the impact of COVID
19 pandemic on the Company’s operations, future cash flows and its consequential impact on the Standalone Ind

AS financial statements as assessed by the management.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

5.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP, a Limited Liability Partnership with LLP dentity Mo, AAB-4294
Regd. Office : 22, Camat Street, Block '8, 3rd Floor, Holkata 700016
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Other Information

The Company’ Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Director’s Report but does not include the standalone Ind AS financial statements and
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on
the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Management for the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Director is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect
to the preparation Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a
true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash
flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read with the

~ Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application
of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively
for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation
of the standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone Ind AS financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone Ind AS financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone Ind AS financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
Zee, audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
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detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s Teport. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease 10 confinue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone Ind AS financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the standalone Ind AS financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Company regarding, among other matters, the

planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and fo communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure 17
a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a.  We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and beliel were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company 30
far as it appears from our examination of those books;

c. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements comply with the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended;
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e.

The going concern matter described in Material Uncertainty Related to Gomg Concern
paragraph above and the matter described in the Emphasis of Matter paragraph above, in our
opinion, may have an adverse effect on the functioning of the Company;

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2021
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directots is disqualified as on March 31,
2021 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to standalone
financial statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in “Annexure 2” to this report;

In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2021 has been paid /
provided by the Company t0 its directors in accordance with the provisions of section 197 read
with Schedule V to the Act

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the
best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i, The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position
in its Standalone Ind AS financial statements- refer note 41 to the Standalone Ind AS
financial statements;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses;

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

per Amit Chugh
Partner

Membership Number: 505224
UDIN: 21505224 AAAAHB3084

Place of Signature: Gurugram
Date: September 27, 2021
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Annexure 1 referred to in paragraph 1 of our report of even date under section ‘Report on other legal and
regulatory requirements’

Re: Apeejay Surrendra Park Hotels Limited {“the Company”)

The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation
of fixed assets except for certain particulars relating to interiors of hotel building.

All fixed assets have not been physically verified by the management during the year but there is a regular
programme of verification, which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard 1o the size of the Company and the
nature of its assets. The Company has also performed physical verification post March 31, 2021 in accordance
with regular programme. No material discrepancies were noticed on such verifications.

According to information and explanations given by the management and audit procedures performed by us, the
title deeds of immovable properties included in property, plant and equipment except for 3 cases of freehold land
amounting to Rs. 19.96 crores as at March 31, 2021, for which registration is pending, are held in the name of the
Company. It has been explained to us that the title deeds for freehold land of Rs. 11.91 crores as at March 31,
2021, have been given as security (mottgage and charge) against the borrowings and that original title deeds are
kept with the lenders, therefore the same could not be made available to us for our verification. Further the same
has been independently confirmed by the Lender.

The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals during the year and no
material discrepancies were noticed on such physical verification. There was no inventory lying with third parties.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any loans, secured or
wnsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintaimed
under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013, Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(iii} (a), (b) and (¢} of the
Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, provisions of section 185 and 186
of the Companies Act 2013 in respect of guarantees (As detailed in Note 29 of the Ind AS financial statements)
have been complied with by the Company. There are no loans and securities granted in respect of which provisions
of section 185 of the Companies Act, 2013 are applicable. No securities have been provided to which the
provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act 2013 apply

The Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the Companies
(Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(v) of the Order are
not applicable.

To the best of our knowledge and as explained, the Central Government has not specified the maintenance of cost
records under Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, for the products/services of the Company.

Undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees state insurance, income tax, duty of custom, goods
and service tax, cess and other applicable statutory dues generally been regularly deposited with the appropriate
authorities though there has been a slight delay in a few cases;

According to the information and explanations given to us and audit procedures performed by us, no undisputed
amounts payable in respect of provident fund, employees’ state insurance, sales-iax, service tax, duty of custom,
duty of excise and value added tax, income-tax, goods and service tax, cess and other statutory dues were
outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.
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{¢) According to the records of the Company, the dues outstanding of income tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of
custom, duty of excise, value added tax, goods and service tax and cess on account of any dispute are as follows

(viii)

(ix)

()

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

Finance | Service 4.39 0.64 3.15 2004-05 to Customs, Excise and
Act, Tax 2008-09 Service Tax  Appellate
1994 & 2010-11 Tribunal

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has delayed in repayment
of 8 instalments of loans or borrowings to banks during the year aggregating to Rs. 11.83 (ranging from 5to 88
days). These amounts were repaid during the year and no such dues were in arrears as on the balance sheet date.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the management and audit procedures
performed by us, the Company has atilized the monies raised by way of debt instruments in the nature of term
loans for the purposes for which they were raised.

Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view of the financial
statements and according to the information and explanations given by the management, we report that no fraud
by the company or no fraud / material fraud on the company by the officers and employees of the Company has
been noticed or reported during the year.

According to the information and explanations given by the management and audit procedures performed by us,
the managerial remuneration has been paid / provided in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the
provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013

In our opinion, the Company is not a nidhi company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3 (xii) of the order are
not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

According to the information and explanations given by the management and audit procedures performed by us,
transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 where
applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, as required by the applicable
accounting standards.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the balance sheet, the
company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible
debentures during the year under review and hence, reporting requirements under clause 3(xiv) are not applicable
to the company and, not commented upon.

According to the information and explanations given by the management and audit procedures performed by us,
the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him as
referred to in section 192 of Companies Act, 2013.
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(xvi) According to the information and explanations given to us, the provisions of section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank
of India Act, 1934 are not applicable to the Company.

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

per Amit Chugh
Partner
Membership Number: 505224
UDIN: 21505224 AAAAHB3084

Place of Signature: Gurugram
Date: September 27, 2021
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Annexure 2 to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on the financial statements of Apeejay
Surrendra Park Hotels Limited

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting Apeejay Surrendra Park Hotels Limited
(“the Company™) as of 31 March 2021 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company
for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on
the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies
Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting
with reference to these Ind AS financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance
with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “(Guidance Note™)
and the Standards on Auditing as specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls
operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit invelves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial statements and their operating
offectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding
of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial statements, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating cffectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or ervor.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the internal financial controls system over financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial
statements,

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting with Reference to these Ind AS Financial
Statements

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial statements
is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
prepavation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial
statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
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being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of
the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting with reference to these Ind
AS financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these
Ind AS financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation
of the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial statements to
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to
these Ind AS financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial statements and such internal financial controls over
financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial statements were operating effectively as at
31 March 2021, based on the internal confrol over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 301003 E/E300005

per Arini f hugh
Partner
Membership Number: 505224

UDIN: 21505224AAAAHB3084

Place of Signature: Gurugram
Date: Septernber 27, 2021



Apeejay Surrendra Park Hotels Limited
Standalone Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2021
(All amounis in INR Crores, untess otherwise sfated}

Asat As at
Notes 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Fixed Assels
Property, plant and equipment 3 837.24 851.26
Capfial work-in-progress 3 27.45 28,26
investment properties 5B 141.44 142.20
Other intangible assets 4 52,35 54.81
Right of use asset 5A i14.61 115.18
nvestinent in subsidianies 6 6.03 0,02
Financiat Assels
Investments 7 0.02 0,02
Loans 8 8,38 843
Other financial asselts 9 3.19 2.99
Non current lax assets 10 343 346
Olher non curtent assets 11 11.25 27.33
1,199,329 1,233.96
Current assets
Inventories 12 9.58 11.24
Financial Assets
Trade recelvables 13 17.90 20.46
Cash and cash equivalents 14 8.76 9.76
Other bank balances 15 .21 0.19
Loans 16 12.03 26.87
Other financial assets 17 8,07 7.92
Other curenl assels 18 11.17 i2.58
65,70 §8.72
Tetal assats 1,265.08 1,322.68
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 18 AT 17.47
Qlher Equity
Other equily 20 519.04 592.90
Tolat equity 536.51 610,37
Non-current liabilities
Financia! liabilities
Leass liabiliies 21 13.35 11.01
Borrowings 22 468.80 438.30
Cther financiai liabiliies 23 0.03 0.03
Provisions 24 7.32 820
Deferred lax llabflillas (nel) 25 3317 43.67
522.47 501.21
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Lease tiabilifes 26 211 147
Borrowings 27 51.22 48.45
Trade payables
{a) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 28 213 1.00
tb} Tolal sutstanding dues of credilors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 28 42.21 43.28
Other financiai fiabilities 29 §1.30 99.58
Provisions 30 8.75 V.79
Other current liabilitias 31 8.39 9.54
206.11 211.31
Tetal liabilities 728.58 712.32
Total equity and liabilities 1,2685.09 1,322.68
Cerporate information & summary of significant accounting poficles 1&2

The accompanying notes are an integral past of lhe slandalona financial stalements.

As per our report of aven dale
For S.R. Batliboi & Co LLP
Chartered Accourrtanls

i ati DO3E/E300005

Membership No:
Place of Signature: Gurugram
Date: 27 Septamber 2021
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For and on behalf of the Board of Direclors of Apeejay Surrendra Park Hotels Limited

f? hft Ki—x &"1{»”

Atul Khosta

T

Chief Financial Officer
Place of Signalure; Dethi
Date: 27 September 2021

B 1215
Place of Signalure: Delhi
Date: 27 September 2021
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SW Keshan li;y Dewan
Company Secretary Managing Diregtor

DIN: Q0051164
Place of Signature: Kolkata
Dale: 27 September 2021

Membership No: A14897
Place of Signatura: Kolkata
Date: 27 September 2021



Apeejay Surrendra Park Hotels Limited
Standalone Statemnent of Profit or Less for the year ended 31 March 2021
(All ameunts in INR Crores, unless otherwise stated)

Notes For year ended 31 For Year ended
March 2021 31 March 2026

income
Revenue from contracts with customers 32 174.86 415.78
Other income 33 8.65 112
Total income T ms T a0
Expenses
Consumption of provisions, beveragss, winesfiquor and smekes 34 28.45 83.03
{Increase)/decreass in Inventories of finished goods {0.10) 1.06
Employee bensiit expensss 35 63.62 a0.04
Finance cosls 36 56.14 51,04
Depreciation and amoriization expense 37 38,16 31/.3:3
Qlher expenses i) 79.65 180.48
Total expenses T 25182 T 41888
Profiti{Loss) before exceptional items and tax (70.41) 7.84
Exceptional items {15.07} -
(Loss)iProfit bafore tax T (a5ds) D
Tax expense 26

Current tax - - 171

Less: MAT credit entitlement - - {171} -

Adjustment of tax refaling to earfier periods - . T 0.04

Beferred lax expense/{credit) {10.49) (15.53)
Total Tax Expensa f (Credit) T YTy )
{Loss)Profil for the year (74.99) ’ T 2344
Other comprehensive Income
H#ems that will not be reclassified to prefit or foss in subsequent periods
Re-measuraments gainf{losses) on defined benefit obligations 112 (1.88)
ncome lax elfact on above ©.02) {@.61}
Othar comprehensive income for the year, net of fax 1.14 {1.27}
Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax {73.85) 22,16
Earnings per equity share

Basic & Diluted 39 {4.29% 124
Corperate information & summary of significant aceounting policies - 1&2

The accompanying notes are an inlegral part of the standalone financial statements.

As per our report of even date

For S.R. Balliboi & Co LLP For and on behalf of lhe Board of Directors of Apeejay Surrendra Park Hotels Limited
Chartered Accountants

1CAL Firm Registration Mo, © 3G1003&/E300005

per Amit Chugl¥,
Pariner
Membership MNo: 505224
Pface of Signaiure: Gurugram
Date: 27 September 2021

w %}é&«f _é"(,iw”‘#&"

Atul Khosla

Chief Financial Officer
Place of Signature: Delhi
Date: 27 September 2021

Grasa?

s Shalini Keshan

Company Secrelary
Membership No: A14897
Place of Signalure; Kolkata
Date: 27 September 2021

N

Chairperson & Whale Time Direclor
DIN: 00051215

Flace of Signature: Delhi

Date: 27 September 2021

Priya Paul

i}‘m&m \MN; P .( P

Vijay Dewan

Maraging Director

DIN: 60051164

Place of Signalure: Kolkala
Date: 27 September 2021



Ageejay Surrendra Park Hoteis Liniited
Standalone Statement of Gash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2021
{All mounts in INR Crores, unless otherwise stated)

For year ended 31

For year ended 31

March 2021 March 2020
A, Operating activities
Profil before tax {85.48) 7.94
Adjustments 1o reconciie Profit before tax to net cash flows:
Depracialion and amorizalion expense 38.16 33.31
interesl on advanees, deposils and tax refunds {3.00) {4.37)
Finance cosls 56.14 51.04
Loss on disposal / sale of langible assets 0.25 130
Bad debts f advance vailien off 0.70 - 124
Liabilities no Tenger required written back {2.28) 14.33)
Nel {gain)fioss on foraign currency lransaclion {107} 112
Amortization of defersed Revenue .05 1.57
Provision for doubtful debts no longer required written back {0.09) -
Provision for doubtful debts and advances 236 4.31
373 93.10
Changes in Working capital :
{increase} { decrease in lrade receivables (0.40) 0.36
Decrease J {Increase) in other financial assets and other asseis 15.12 {222}
Decrease in iventories 1.58 245
Increase T trade payables 2.28 595
Increase / (decrease) in other financial liabilties, other liabilllies and pravisions 3.81 (4.23)
22.49 331
fncome tax refund Q.03 384
Net cash flows frony operating activities (A) 26.25 100.25
B. lnvesling activities !
Purchase of properly, plant and equipment and intangible assets including capitat work in progress, capital credilors and capital advances (40.29) 63.19)
Preceeds frem sale of property, plant and equipment .10 013
Loans recelvedi{given) back during the period 14.59 {32.26)
nvestment in susbsidiary {¢.01) -
Funds placed in long-lerm deposits wath bank (¢.22} {1.51)
inlerest ncome received 160 -
Net cash flows used in invesling activities (B) (24.23) {95.93)
G.  Financing activities :
Proceeds frem non-curcent borrowings 66.56 100.00
Praceeds from cumen! borrowings 3179 22.74
Repaymenl of non-current borrovings (38.81) (4147}
Repaymenl of curent borrowings {30.71) {26.49)
Payrenl of lease lfabililies {2.18) (1.86)
Finance cosfs pald {33.68) (50.57)
Net cash flows from / {used in) financing activities {C) (5.10) 2,55
Net increasef{decrease) in cash and cash equivatents (A+B+C) (.09) 5.87
Cash and cash eguivalens at Ihe beginning of ihe pericd 8.56 3.69
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 6.47 4.56
Cash and cash equivalents comprise {refer note 14 and note 30} :
Cash on hand 085 1.24
Cheques on hand - 0.08
Balances wilh hanks:
- Balances with banks on currenl accounts 5.91 8.44
Book overdraft 0.29) {0.20}
6.47 8.56

Changes in Jiabilitles axising from financing activities

Particulars Balance as at1 Gash flows Adiustment on account Exchange differences EIR Balance as at 31
April 2020 of moratorfum adjustment March 2021
Long Term Borrowings 491,16 2966 1962 1.07 {¢.41) 541.10
Short Term Borrowings 18.68 11.06 170 - - 31.42
Loan Repayable on Demand (Cash Credit) 20.79 {9.99) - - - 19.80
Tolai liabilities from financing activilies 539.61 30,72 21,32 1.07 {0.41)] 592.32
Particulars Balance asat i Cash flows Adjustment on account Exchange differences EIR Bafance as at 31
_April 2019 of moratorium - adjustment tharch 2020
Long Tern Borrowings 432.83 56.08 - 310 (0.84) 491,16
Shord Term Borrowings 24.98 (6.32) - - - 18.66
Loan Repayable on Demand {Cash Credif) 2720 2.5% - - - 29.79
Tola! liabilities from financing activilies 485.01 5235 - 3.10 (0,84} 539.61

Gorporate information & summary of signifisant aceounting policies (Refer note 182}
The accompanying notes are an inlegrai parl of the standalone financiat statementls.

As per our report of even dale

For 5.R. Batliboi & Ce LLP

Chartered Accountants

1CAl Fiem Regislration Na, ; 301003E/E300005

Membership No: 3
Place of Signalure: Gurugram
Date: 27 Seplember 2021

Atut Khosla

Chief Financial Gfftcer
Pface of Signalure: Delhi

Dale: 27 Seplember 2021
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Apeejay Surrendra Park Hotels Limited
Statement of Ghanges in Equity for the year ended 31 March 2021
{All armounts in INR Crores, unless otherwise stated)

a. Equity share capital

crease { {Pecrease)
" Balance as on 1 Apri increase / {Decrease} Balance as on 3 in equity share
Particulars Note reference in equify share capital . . Balance as on 31 March 2021
2019 N . March 2020 capital during the
during the perlod .
period
Equity Share Capital 18 1747 - 17.47 - 1747
b, Other equity
Particulars Reserves and Surplus
Note reference Capital Redemption s . General Relained Total
Securities Premium .
Reserve Reserve Earnings
Balance as at 1 April 2019 20 1.41 183.81 78.74 306.77 570.73
Profit for the year - - - 23.44 25.44
Qther comprehensive income:
Remeasurement of delined benefit obligalions (net of Lax) - - - {1.27) {1.27)
falance as at 1 April 2020 20 1.41 183.81 78.74 328.94 592.90
Profit for tha year - - - (74.99) {74.99)
Other comprehansive income:
Remeasurement losses of defined benefit obligations (nel of tax) - - - 1.14 1.14
Balance &s at 31 March 2021 20 1.41 183.81 78,74 255.09 519.04

Corperate information & summary of significant accounting polisies {Refor note 182)

The accempanying noles are an integral part of lhe standalone financial slatemenls.

As per our report of even date

For S.R. Batliboi & Ce LLP

Charered Accountanls

ICAl Firm Registration Mo, : 301003E/£300005

per Amit Chugh%,
Pariner T,
Membership Na: 585224
Place of Signature: Gunigram
Date: 27 September 2021

For and on behalf of the Beard cf Directors of Apeejay Surrendra Park Hotels Limited

At icdorts

Atul Khasla

Chief Flnancial Officer
Place of Signature: Delhi
Date: 27 September 2621
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Shalini Keshan

Company Secrelary
Membership No: A14897
Place of Signature: Kolkata
Date: 27 September 2021

L L

Priya Pau

Chalrpersoh & ¥Whole Time Direclor
DIN: 80051215

Place of Signalure: Delhi

Date: 27 September 2021

Yo P T
y Devean —
Managing Director

DIN: 00051164

Place of Signalure: Kolkata

Date: 27 Seplember 2021




Apeejay Surrendra Park Hotels Limited
Notes to the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements as at and for the period ended 31 March 2021

1. Corporate information

Apesjay Surrendra Park Hotels Limited (‘the Company’) was incorporated on 27 November 1887. The Company is a pioneer of luxury
boutique hotels in India and is primarily engaged in the business of owning, operating and managing hotels under names “The Park
Hotels, The Park Collection and Zone by The Park’. It is a public company domiciled in India and is incorporated under the provisions of the
Companies Act applicable in India. The registered office of the Company is located at 17, Park Street, Kolkata, West Bengal, India, 700018.

The standalone Ind AS financial statements were authorized for issue in accordance with the resolution of the Board of Directors
dated 27 September 2021,

. Significant Accounting Policies
2.1, Basis of Preparation

These standalone Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2021 have been prepared in accordance with
Indian Accounting Standard, Financial Reporting, netified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended
from time to 1imé) and presentation requirements of Division Il of Scheduie Il to the Companies Act, 2013, (Ind AS compliant Schedule iil),-
as applicable to the standalone Ind AS financial statements.

The financial statements have been prepared on the accrual and going concern basis in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, Further, the standalone Ind AS financial siatements have been prepared on historical cost basis except certain financial
assets and liabilities which are measured at fair values.

. certain financial asseis and liabilities measured at fair value;
- defined benefit plans — plan assets measured at fair value;

The standalone Ind AS financial statements are presented in INR Crores, except when otherwise indicated and all the values ara rounded to
two decimat places.

2.2. Summary of significant accounting policies

a) Fair value measurement :
The Company measurss financial instruments such as derivatives at fair value at each Balance Sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received o sell an asset or paid to transfer a fiability in an orderly transaction between market
pariicipants at the measurement date.

The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the Hability takes place either:
- In the principal market for the asset or liagility, or
- In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the assel or iability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liabifity is measured using the assumptions that market participants wouid use when pricing the asset or
liability, assurning that market participants act in their economic best interest,

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market parficipant's ability to generate economic benefits by
using the asset in its highest and best use or by seling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best
use,

The Company uses valuation technigues that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure
fair vaiue, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the Standalone ind AS Financial Statements are categorized

within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a

whole:

- Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

- Level 2 - Valuation technigues for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair vaiue measurement is directly or indirecily
observable;

. Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable,

For assete and liabilities that are recognised in the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statemenis on a recurting basis, the Company
determines whether iransfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation {based on the lowest leve!
input that is significant to the fair valus measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting pericd.




b)
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Apeejay Surrendra Park Hotels Limited
Notes to the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements as at and for the period ended 31 March 2021

Management determines the policies and procedures for both recurting fair value measurement, such as derivative instruments
measured at fair value, and for non-recurring measurement, such as assets held for distribution in discontinued operations.

At each reporting date, management analysas the movements in the values of assets and fiabilties which are required to ke re-
measured or re-assessed as per the Company's accounting policies. For this analysis, the management verifies the major inputs applied
in the latest valuation by agreeing the information in the valuation computation te contracts and other relevant documents.

The Management, in conjunction with the Company’s external valuers, also compares the change in the fair value of each asset and
lability with relevant extemal sources to determine whether the change is reasonaple.

Current and non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the Standalone Balance Sheet based on current/non-current classification.
An asset is reported as curreni when it is:
a. expected o be reaiised or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal operating cycle;
b. held primarily for the purpose of trading;
¢ expected to be realised within iwelve months after the reporting period; or
d. cash or cash equivalent unless restricied from bsing exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the
reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liabiiity is current when:
a. it is expected to be settled in noymal operating cycle;
b. it is held primarily for the purpose of trading;
c. itis due to be settled within twelve menths afier the reporting period; or
d. there is na unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

The Company classified all other liabilities as non-current.
Defarred tax assels and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabililies,

The operating cycle is ihe time between ihe acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The
Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

Property, plant and equipment, capital work in progress and investment properties

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumuiaied depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. On
transition to Ind AS, the Company had elected to measure all of its property, plant and equipment at the previous GAAP carrying value
{deemed cost).

The cost comprises purchase price, borrowing costs if capitalisation criteria are met and directly altributable cost of bringing the assef to
its working conditicn for the intended use. Any trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price,

Subsequent expenditure related to an item of property, plant and equipment is added to its book value only i it increases the future
benafits from the existing asset beyond its previously assessed standard of performance. All other expenses on existing property, plant
and equipment, including day-te-day repair and maintenance expenditure and cost of replacing parts, are charged to the Standalone
Statement of Profit and Loss Tor the period in which such expenses are incurred.

Capital work in progress is stated at cost, net of accumulaied impairment loss .Capital work-in-progress comprises of property, plant and
equipment that are not ready for their intended use at the end of reporting period and are carried at cost comprising direct costs, related
incidertal expenses, other directly attributable costs and borrowing costs.

tnvestment properties are measured initially af cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recogniticn, investment properties
are staied at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment loss, if any.

The cost includes the cost of replacing pasts and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition criteria are met,
When significant parts of the investment property are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates them separately
based on their specific useful ives. All ather repair and maintenance costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Investment properties are derecognised either when they have been disposed of or when they are permanently withdrawn from use and
ne future economic benefit is expected from their disposal. The difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the assel is recognised in profit or loss in the period of derecognition. In determining the amount of consideration from the derecognition
of investment property the Group considers the effects of variable consideration, existence of a significant financing companent, non-
cash consideration, and consideration payable to the buyer (if any).




Apeejay Surrendra Park Hotels Limited .
Notes to the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements as at and for the period ended 31 March 2021

Transfers are made to (or from) investment property anly when there is a change in use.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of property, plant and equipment are measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is
derecognized.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on a straight-line basis over the useful lives of assets estimated by the
management, taking into acceunt the nature of the asset on technical evaluation of the useful life, which may not necessarily be in
afignment with the indicative useful lives prescribed by Schedute 1l to the Companies Act, 2013. The useful life is as follows:

Estimated useful life | Estimated useful life |

Asset Category (in years) as per (in years) as per
Schedule i technical assessment

Plant and equipment 15 20

Office equipment 5 5

Buildings* 60 30-100

Furniture and fixtures:

General 10 15-20

Used in hotels and restaurants 8 15.90

Vehicles:

Generat 10 8

Used in business of running them on hire

Computers:

Servers and networks & 5

Desktops and laptops 3 26

* Depreciation on building constructed on leasehold jand is restricted to lowar of useful life of balance period of ieasehold land or useful
life calculated based on 100 years.

Depreciation on deemad cost of other preperty, plant and equipment (except land) is provided on pro rata basis on straight line methed
based on usefui lives specified in Schedule |f to the Companies Act, 2013,

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
sconomic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amouni of the asset} is included in the stalement of profit and loss when
the asset is derecognised.

The residual vaiues, useful iives and mathods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year end
and adjusted prospactively. :

Intangible assets and Goodwlll

intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a business
combination/acquisition is their fair value at the date of acquisition. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cosi less
any accurmulated amortisation and accumulated impaiment losses.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite.

Computer software for internal use, which is primarily acquired from third party vendors, is capitalized. Subsequent cost asscciated with
maintaining such software are recognized as expense as incurred. Cost of software includes license fee and cost of

implementation/system integration services, where applicabie.

Iniangible assets with finite lives are amortisad over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an
indication that the intangible asset may be impaired.

The useful life is as follows:
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Apeejay Surrendra Park Hotels Limited
Notes to the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements as at and for the period ended 31 March 2021

Asset Category Useful life (in years)
Computer software 5

The amortisation pericd and the amortisation methed for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of
each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied
in the asset are considered to modify the amortisation period or methed, as appropriate, and are ireated as changes in accouniing
estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss
unless such expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset.

Intangible. assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortised, but are tested for impairment annually, either individually or at the cash-
generating unit level. The assessment of indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether the indefinite life continues fo be
supportabie, If not, the change in useful life from indefinite to finite is made on a prospective basis.

An intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal (i.e., at the date the recipient obtains contrelf) or when no future econemic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognised.

The Brand under the head ‘Intangible assets’ is being amortised based on the useful life of 20 years as assessed by the management.
Goodwill arese on acquiring confectionary business of Flurry is not amortized and is fested for impairment annually.

De-recognition -

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recegnized is derecognized upon disposal/discard or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calcuiated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the Statement of Profit and Loss when
the asset is derecognized. '

Investment in equity instruments of subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity that is controlled by the Campany. The Company controls its subsidiary when the subsidiary is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its invoivemnent with the subsidiary and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
subsidiary.

The consideration made in determining whether significant influence or jeint controf are similar to those necessary to determine control
over the subsidiaries.

Investment in equity instruments of subsidiaries are stated at cost as per Ind AS 27 'Separate Financial Statements’. Where the carrying
amount of an investment is greater than its estimated recoverable amount, it is assessed for recoverability and in case of permanent
diminution provision for impairment is recorded in Statement of Profit and Loss. On disposal of investment, the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount is charged or credited to the Statement of Profii and Loss.

For any benefit provided to a subsidiary, such benefit is fair valued and the difference between such fair value and contracted charge is
adjusted to the carrying vaiue of investments in that subsidiary.

Inventories
inventories comprise provisions, beverage and smokes, wines and liquor, stores and spares parts and other operating supplies such as
crockery, cutlery, glassware, linen, etc. Inventories are vaiued at lower of cost and net realizable value.

Costs includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories at their present location and condition. Cost is
determined on a first in first out basis.

Inventories also comprise Finished Goods which inciudes Cakes and Confectionaries. Cost of finished goods includes cost of direct
materials and labour and & proportion of manufacturing overheads based on the nonmal cperating capacity but excluding berrewing
costs. Cost is determined on a weighted average basis.

Net realizable vale is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and estimated
costs necessary to make the sale.

Revenue from contract or services with customer and other streams of revenue

Reveanue from contracts with customers is recognized when the performance obligations towards custemer have been met. Performance
obligations are deemed to have been met when control of the goods or services are transferred fo the customer at an amount that
reflacts the consideration which the Company expects to realize in exchange for those goods or services and no significant uncertainty
exists as regards the ultimate collectability of such consideration.




Apeejay Surrendra Park Hotels Limited
Notes to the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements as at and for the period ended 31 March 2021

The Company has generally concluded that it is the principal in its reverue afrangements because it typically controls the goods or
services before transferring them to the customer.

The Gompany has applied following accounting pelicy for revenue recognition:
Revenue from operation:
Room, Food & Beverage and Wine & Liquor:

Revenue i recognised at the transaction price that is allocated to the performance obligation. Revenue includes room revenue, food &
beverage sale, wine & liquor sale which is recognised once the rooms are occupied, focd & beverage and wine & fiquor are sold as per
the contract with the customer.

Cther ancillary and allied service income:

In relation to laundry income, communication inceme, health club income and other aliied services, the revenue has been recognised by
referance io the time of service rendered. In respect of membership fee of spa services, revenue is earned when the customer enrols for
membership. In respect of performance obiigations satisfied over a period of time, revenue is recognised at the allocated transaction
price on a time-proporticn basis.

Revenue is recognized at the transaction price aliocated te the performance obligation and is recognized net of discounts, any
entitlements that may accrue 1o the custemer for subsequent utilization and sales related taxes in the period in which the services are
rendered. The Company collects value added tax (VAT) and Goods and Service Tax (GST) on behalf of the government and not on its
own account. Therefore, these are not econcmic benefits flowing to the Company and hence excluded from revenue i.e, revenue should
be nat of GST and VAT.

Other operating income

Other cperating income are recognized as follows!
- Income from management fees are recognized on accrual basis on rendering of related services.
- Exports entitlements [arising out of Served from India Scheme (SFIS)] are recognized when the right to receive related benefits as
per the terms of the schemes is established in respect of the exports made by the Company and when there is no significant
uncertainty regarding the uitimate collectability of relevant export proceeds.

Other income

Other income is recognized as follows:

- Interest income
For all financial instruments measured ai amortisad cost, interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate ("EIR"), which is
the rate that exactly discounts the estimaied future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or &
shorter period, where appropriate, to the net carying amount of the financial assel. When caloulating the effective interest rate, the
Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument but does not consider
the expected credit losses.

- For other income from shop rentals, refer below.

Rentat Income:

Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease over the lease tarms and is included in revenue
in the Statement of Profit and Loss, if it is an operating lease.

Dividend Income:

Dividend income is recognised ai the time when the right to receive is established which is generally when shargholders
approve the dividend.

Contract balances
Contract Assets
A contract asset is the right to consideration in axchange for goods or services transferred to the customer. If the Gompany performs by

transferring goods or services to a customer before the customer pays consideration or before payment ig due, a contract asset is
recognized for the earned consideration that is conditional.
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Trade receivables

A receivable represents the Company's right to an amount of consideration ihat is unconditional (i.e., only the passage of time is
required before payment of the consideration is due). Refer to accounting policies of financiat assets with respect to initial recognition
and subsequent measurement below.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised if a payment is received ot a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a custemer before the Company
transfers the reiated goods or services. Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company performs under the contract
(i.e., transfers control of the related goods or services o the cusiomer).

The Company has adopted Ind AS 115 Revenue from contracts with customers with effective from April 01, 2018. For the purpose of
preparation of Ind AS Financial Statements, management has avaluated the impact required due to adopticn of Ind AS 115, No material
adiusiments were identified.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs include exchange differences arising from foreign currency horrowings to the extent they are regarded as an adjustment
fo the interest cost. Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets are capitafised as
part of the cost of such assets. A qualifying asset is one that necessarily takes substantial period of time to get ready for ils intended
use.

inlerest income earned on the emporary invesiment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducled
from the borrowing costs cligible for capitalisation. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection
with the borrowing of funds.

All other borrowing costs are charged to the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss for the period for which they are incuired.

Taxes

Current income tax

Current income lax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to tha taxaticn authorities.
The tax rates and tax laws used tc compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date.

Current income tax relating fo items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised oulside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive
income or in equity). Current lax items are recegnised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are
subject fo interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferrad tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date. Deferred income tax is measured using the tax rates and the tax
laws enacted or substantially enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilites are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

- When the deferred tax jiability arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at ihe time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor iaxable profit or loss.

- In respect of taxable termparary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint venture, when
the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences wili not reverse
in the foreseeable future. ‘

Defarred tax assets are recognised for alt deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused fax credits and any unused tax
losses. Deferred tax asseis are recognised lo the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, and the carry ferward of unused tax credits and unused iax losses can be uiilized, excepl:

- When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in 2
transaction that is not a business cembination and, at the ime of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or
loss.

- in respect of deductible temperary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint ventures,
deferred iax asseis are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable
future and taxadle profit will be available against which ihe temporary differences can be utilized.

The carrying armount of deferred lax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxabie profit wili be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utitised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are
re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will aliow the
deferred tax asset to be recovered.
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised, or the
fiability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax faws) that have beer enacted or substantively enacied at the reporiing date.

Deferrad tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss {eithar in other comprehensive income
or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

Tax benefits acquired as part of a business combination, but not satisfying the criteria for separate recegnition at that date, are
recognised subsequently if new information about facts and circumstances change. Acquired deferred tax benefits recognised within the
measurement period reduce goodwill related to that acquisition if they resull from new information obtained about facts and
circumstances existing at the acquisition date. If the carmrying amount of goodwill is zero, any remaining deferred tax benefits are
recognised in OCI capital reserve depending on the principle explained for bargain purchase gains. All other acquired tax benefits
realised are recognised in profit or loss.

The Company offsets deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities if and only if it has a lagally enforceable right to set off current tax
assets and current tax liabilitizs and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax jiabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities which intend either to setile current tax liabilities and assets on a
net basis, or to realise the assets and setfie the liabilities simulianeously, in each future period in which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or recovered.

Minimum aiternate tax (MAT) paid in a pericd is charged to the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss as current tax for the peried.
The deferred tax asset is recognised for MAT credit available only to the extent that it is probable that the concernad company will pay
normal income tax during the specified period, i.e., the period for which MAT credit is allowed to be carried forward. In the period in
which the Company recognizes MAT credit as an asset, it is created by way of credit to the Standalene Statement of Profit and Loss and
shown as part of deferred fax asset. The Company reviews the "MAT credit eniiflement” asset at each reporting daie and writes down
the asset to the extent that it is no longer probable that it will pay nommai tax during the specified period.

Sales/ value added taxes/GST (‘tax’) paid on acquisition of assets or on incurring expenses

When tax incurred on purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the taxation authority, the tax paid is recognised as part of
cost of acquisition of the asset or part of the expense item, as applicable. Oiherwise, expenses and assets are recognised net of the
amount of tax paid.

The nat amount of tax recoverable from or payabile to, the taxation authority is included as part of receivables or payables in the balance
sheet.

Foreign currency translation

The Company's Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements are presented in Indian rupee (INR) which is also the Company’s functional
currency.

Foreign currency transactions are recorded on initial recognition in the functional currency, using the exchange rate prevailing at the daie
of transaction.

Measurement of foreign currency item at the reporting date
Foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency are translated at the exchange rates prevailing on the
reporiing date.

Exchange differences
Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of menetary tems are recognised as income or expense in the Standalone
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Mon-monstary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in & foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are franslated using the exchange rates
at the date when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at falr value is
treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item {i.e., translation differences on items whose
fair value gain or loss is recognised in OCt or profit or loss are also recognised in OCI or profit or loss, respectively).

On consolidation, the assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated into INR at the rate of exchange prevailing at the reporting
date and their Standalone Statements of Prafit and Loss are translated at exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the fransactions. For
praciical reasons, the Company uses an average rate to translate income and expense itams, if the average rate appreximates the
exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. The exchange differences arising on translation for consclidation are recognised in OCI.
On disposal of a foreign operation, the compenent of OCl relating to that particular foreign operation is recognised in profit or loss.
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Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits

All short-term employee benefits such as salaries, incentives etc. which are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after ihe and
of the period in which the employee renders the relafed services which entitles him to avail such benefiis are charged to the Standaione
Statemant of Profit and Loss, The Company estimates the liability for such shortterm benefits on costto Company basis.

Defined contribution plans
Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is defined contribution scheme.

Tne Campany recognises contribution payable to the provident fund as an expenditure, when an employee renders the refated service.
The Company has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the funds. The Company's contributions to defined contribution
plans are charged to the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss as incurred.

Defined benefit plans

The Company operates a defined benefit gratuity plan for its employees. The costs of providing benefits under this plan is determined on
the basis of actuarial valuation at each year-end using the projected unit credit method. Remeasurements, comprising of aciuarial gains
and losses, the affect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on
plan assets {excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined penefit liability), are recognised immediately in the Standalone
Balance Sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained eamings through OC! in the period in which they occur. Re-
measurements are not reclassified to profit and loss in subsequent periods.

Past service cosls are recognisad in Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss on the earlier of.
¢ The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and
« The date that the Company recognises related restructuring costs

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit fability or asset. The Company recognises the following
changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the standalone statement of profit and loss:
. Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and neon-routing
settlements; and
. Net interest expense or income

Other long-term employee benefits

The Company freats accumulated leave expecied to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as long-term employee benefit for
measurement purposes. Such long-term compensated advances are provided for based on the actuarial valuation using the projected
unit credit method at the year-end. Actuarial gains/losses are immediately taken fo the Standalone Statement of Profit and Less and are
not deferred. The Company presents the leave as a current liability in the Standalone Balance Sheet, to the extent it does not have an
uncenditional right to defer its settlement for 12 months after the reporting date.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication: that an asset may be impaired. If any indication
exists, or when annual impairmant testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset's recoverabie amount. An
asset's recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit's (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its
value in use. The recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows
that are largely independeni of those from ether assets or greups of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU
exceads its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflacts current market assessmants of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value
less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such fransactions can be identified, an
appropriate valuation model is used. These caiculations are coroboraled by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for
publicly fraded companies or other available fair vaiue indicators.

The Gompany bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which are prepared separately for
each of the Company's CGUs to which the individual assets are allocated. Theso budgeis and foracast calculations generally
cover a period of five years. For longer periods, a long-term growth rate is calculated and applied to project future cash flows
after the fifth year. To estimate cash flow projections beyond periods covered by the most recent budgetsfforecasts, the
Company extrapolates cash flow projections in the budget using a steady or declining growth rate for subsequent years, unless
an increasing rate can be iustified. In any case, this growth rate does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the
products, industries, or couniry or countries in which the Comgany operates, or for the market in which the asset is used.

impairment losses are recognised in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss.
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For assets excluding goodwill, an assessmernt is made at each reporting date to determina whether there is an indication that previously
recognised impairment losses no lenger exist or have decreased. |f such indication exists, the Company estimates the asset's or CGU's
recoverable amount. A previously recognised impaimment loss is reversed onfy if there has been a change in the assumptions used io
determine the asset's recoverable amount since the jast impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying
amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carying amount that would have been determined, net of
depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the statement of profit
and loss uniess the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case, the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment annually at each reporting date at the CGU level, as appropriate,
and when circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.

Goodwill is tested for impairment annually and when circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.

Impairment is determined for goodwill by assessing the recoverable amount of éach CGU (or Company of CGUs) to which the gocdwil:
relates. When the recoverable amount of the CGU is less than its carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. Impairment losses
relating to gocdwitl cannot be reversed in future periods.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents for the pumposes of Standalone Statement of Cash Flows comprise cash at bank and in hand, cheques in
nand and short-term deposite with an original matusity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value. For the pirpase of the standalone statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as
defined above, as they are considered an integral part of the Company’s cash management,

Provisions, contingent liabilities and capital commitments

A provision is recognised when the Company has a present obligation as a resuit of past event, it is probable that an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settie the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of
the obligation. When the Company expects some or ail of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contraci, the
reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtzally certain. The expense relating to a
provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement. If the effect of the time value of money is material,
provisions are discounted using a current pretax rate that reflacts, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting
is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

A contingent liability is a possible abligation that arises from past events whose existence wili be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
cocUrrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Gompany or a present obligation that is not recognised
because it is not probable that an outfiow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in
extremnely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably, The Company dees not
recognhize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the Standalore ind AS Financial Statements.

Capital Commitmants inciudes the amount of purchase orders (net of advances) issued lo parties for completion of assets.
Leases

Ind AS 116 requires the Company to assess at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a peried of time in exchange for consideration.

Company as a lessee

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leasgs and leases of low-
value assets. The Company recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the
underiying assets.

Right-of-use assets

The Company recognises right-of use assels at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying asset is available for
use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, and adjusted
for any re-measurement of lease liabilities, The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease labilities recognised, initial direct
costs incurred, and lease payments made &t or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received.

Unless the Company is reasonably certain to obtain ownership of the leased asset at the end of the lease term, right-of-use assets are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and its estimated useful lives of the assets, as follows:

Land 3010 99 years

Building 1 to 29 years
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if ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Company at the end of ihe lease temn or the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase
cplion, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset,

The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment. Refer to the accounting policies in section () Impairment of non-financial assets.

l.ease liabilities

Af the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease payments to
be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments {including in substance fixed payments) less any lease
incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a raie, and amounts expected io be paid under residual value
guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option reascnably certain to be exercised by the
Company and payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the lease term reflects the Company exercising the option to terminate.
The variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expenses (unless they are incurred to produce
invantories) in the period in which the event or condition that triggers the payment ocours.

In calculating the present vaiue of lease payments, the Company uses the incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date
# the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is
increased to refiect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease
liabilties is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (e.g. changes to future
payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine such lease payments), or a change in the assessment of an
option to purchase the underlying asset.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption te its short-term leases contracis including lease of guest houses (i.e.,
those leases that have & lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and de not contain a purchase option). it also
applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemplion to leases of office equipment like printers taken on lease etc., that are low
value. Lease payments on shortdem leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense in Standalone Statement of
Profit and Loss on a straight-fine basis over the |ease terms,

Company as a lessor

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are classified
as operating leases. Rental income arising is accounted for on a straight-line basis over ine lease terms and is included in other income
in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operaling lease are added to
the carrying amount of the leased assei and recognised over the lease termn on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are
recognised as revenue in the pericd in which they are samed.

Financial instruments

Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement:

All financial assets are recogrised initially at fair vaiue plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit or
loss, transaction costs that are aitributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Purchases or sales of financial asseis that require
delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convertion in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on
tha irade dale, i.e., the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement:

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:
Debt instruments at amortized Gost '

Dabt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instrumendts at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income {FVTOCI)

Debt instruments at amortized cost: A financial asset is measured at the amortized cost if both the following conditions are met:

The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for coflecling contractual cash flows, and

Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPP1) on the
principal amount outstanding.

This category is the most relevant to the Company. Afer initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequenily measured at
amortized cost using the effective interest rate (EfR) method. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integrai part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included in finance income in the
profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or less. This category generally applies to trade and other
receivables,

Debt instruments at FYOCL: A 'debt instrument’ is dassified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:

- The objeciive of the business modei is achieved both by collecting contractual cash fiows and selling the financial assets, and
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The asset's confractual cash flows represent SPPI

Debt instruments included within the FYTOC! category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair value. Fair value
mavements are reccgnized in the other comprehensive income (OCH). However, the Company recognizes interest income, impairment
iosses and reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the Statement of Profit and Loss. On derecognition of the asset, cumulative
gain or loss previously recognised in OCH is reclassified from the aquity to Statement of Profit and Loss. [nterest earned whilst halding
FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as interest income using the EIR method.

Debt instrument at FVTPL: FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for
categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL.

in additicn, the Company may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meeis amertized cost or FVTOCI criteria, as at
FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred
to as ‘accouniing mismaich’). The Company has not designated any debt instrument as at FVTPL. Debt instruments included within the
FVTPL category are meastred at fair value with all changes recognized in the P&L.

Equity investments: Investments in equity instruments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are
neid for trading are classified as at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL). For all other equity instruments, the Company makes an
irrevocable choice upon initiat recognifion, on an instrument by instrument basis o rlassify the same either as at fair value through other
comprehensive income (FYOCI) or fair vaiue through profit or loss (FVTPL). Amounts presented in ofher comprehensive income are not
subsequently transferred to profit or loss. However, the Company fransfers the cumulative gain or loss within equity. Dividends on such
investments are recognised in profit or loss unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of the investment,

Impairment of financial assets

in accordance with Ind AS 108, the Company applies expected credit loss {ECL) moedel for measurement and recognition of impaiment
loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure.

Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortized cost e.g., loans, debt securities, deposits, trade receivables
and bank balance.

Financiai assets that are debt instruments and are measured as at FVTOCL

Lease receivabies under Ind AS 116,

Trade receivables o¢ any coniractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result from fransactions that are within the
scope of Ind AS 115.

Loan commitments which are not measured as at FVTPL

Financial guarantee contracts which are not measured as at FVIPL.

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairrent loss allowance on:

Trade receivables or contract revenue receivables, and All lease receivables resulting from transactions within the scope of Ind AS 116.
The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in oredit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment
loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment foss on other-financial asseis and risk exposure, the Cecmpany datermines that whether there has been a
significant increase in the credit risk since initial recegnition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to
provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifelime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent peried, cradit
quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initiai recognitior, then the entity
reverts to recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12-month EGL. Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulling from afi
possible default events over the expected life of & financial instrument. The 12-month EGL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results
from default events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date. :

ECL impaiment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/ expense in the Siandalone
Statemnent of Profit and Loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset is derecognized when

The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired or

The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash
flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either {a) the Company has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred controi of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it
evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor fransferred control of the assei, the Company continues to recognize the
transferred asset to the extent of the Company's continuing invalvement. In that case, the Company also recognizes an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Company has retained.
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Ceniinuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the jower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximurm amount of consideration that the Cempany could be required to repay.

Financial liabilifies

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabifities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings,
payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial iabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of lvans and borrowings and payables, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Company's financiai liabilities include trade and other payables, security deposits, loans and borrowings including bank cverdrafts
and other financia! liabilities.

Subsequent measurement
Subsequent to initial recognition, the measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or less include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon
initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabiities are classified as held for trading i they are incurred for the
purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes detivative financiai insiruments entered into by the Company that
are not designated as'hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 109: Financial Instruments.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss

Financia! liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) are designated as such at the initial
date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied, For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/losses
attributable to changes in own credit risk are recognized in OCI. These gains/losses are not subsequently transferred to profit and loss.
However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are
recegnised in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss. The Company has not designated any financial liability as at fair value
through profit and loss.

Loans and borrowings

This is the category most relevant to the Company. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortized cost using the FIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognized as well as through the EIR amortization process. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EfR. The EIR amartization is included as finance costs in the
Standalone Siaternent of Profit and Loss. This category generally applies to borrowings.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. Wher: an existing
financial liability is replaced by another from the same iender on substantialy different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or medification is treated as the derecognition of the criginal liability and the recognition of a
new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the Standalore Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial guarantee confracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the holder for
a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in accerdance with the terms of a debt instrument.
Financial guarantee contracts are recognised initially as a liak:ility at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequently, the liabllity is measured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined as per
impairment requirements of Ind AS 109 and the amount recognised less cumulative amortisation.

Government grants

Government granis are recognised where there is reasonable assurance that the grant wili be received and all attached conditions will
be complied with.

When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis over the periods that the related costs, for
which it is intended o compensate, are expensed. When the grant refates to an asset, it is recognised as income in equal ameunts over
the expected useful life of the related asset in the Standalone Staternent of Profit and Loss and is linked to fuifiment of associated export
obligations.

The Company imporis capital goods and avails concession for cusiom duty under Export Prometion Capitat Goods Scheme (“the EPCG
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Scheme™). The quanium of duty concession avaiied is added to the carrying value of the particular property, piant and equipment and a
corresponding deferred income recognized. Based on the terms and conditions of the EPCG Scheme, the grant received is to
compensate the impert of cost of assets subject {o export cbligation prescrited in the EPCG Scheme. The grant is recegnized in the
Statement of Profit and Loss on the basis of fulfiment of related export obligation ("Export Incentive income”™).

Government granis relating to the purchase of property, plant and equipment are included in non-current/current liakilities as deferred
government grant and credited to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the expected lives of the related assets and presented within
other operating income {'Export Incentive income™).

Business Combination and Goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition methed. The cost of an acquisition is measured as the aggregate of the
consideration transferred measured at acquisition date fair value and the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired, and ithe labilities assumed are recognised at their acquisition date fair values.
For this purpose, the [abilifies assumed include contingent liabilities representing present obligation and they are measured at their
acquisition fair values irrespective of the fact that outflow of resources emboedying economic benefits is not probable. However, the
following assets and liabilities acquired in a business combination are measured af the basis indicated below;

« Defarred tax assets or liabilities, and the assets or liabilities related to employee benefit arrangements are recognised and measured in
accordance with Ind AS 12: Income Tax and ind AS 19 : Employee Benefits respectively.

s Reacquired rights are measured ai a value determined on the basis of the remaining contractual ferm of the relaied contract. Such
valuation does not consider potential renewal of the reacguired right.

When the Company acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and
designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent cenditions as at the acquisition date.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, any previcusly held equity interest is re-measured at its acquisition date fair value and
any resulting gain or loss is recognised in Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss or OCI, as appropriate.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred and the amount recognised for
nen-controlling interests, and any previous interest held, over the net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the fair value
of the net assets acquired is in excess of the aggregate consideration transferred, the Company re-assesses whether it has corrsctly
identified al of the assets acquired and all of the liabilities assumed and reviews the procedures used to measure the amounts io be
recognised at the acquisition date. If the reassessment still results in an excess of the fair value of net assets acquired over the
aggregate consideration transferred, then the gain is recognised in OCl and accumulated in equity as capital reserve. However, if there
is nc clear evidence of bargain purchase, the entity recognises the gain directly in equily as capital reserve, without routing the same
through OCI.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose of impairment testing,
goodwili acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Company's cash-generating units that
are expected to benefit from the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the acquires are assigned to those
units. ’

A cash generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is iested for impairment annuaily, or more frequently when there is an
indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit is iess than its carrying amount, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the
unit pro rata based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised in Standalone
Statement of Profit and Loss. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent pericds.

Where goodwill has heen allocated to a cash-generaling unit and part of the operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill
associated with the disposed operation is included in the carrying amount of the operation when determining the gain or loss on
disposal. Goodwill disposed in these circumstances is measured based on the relative values of the disposed operation and the portion
of the cash-generating unit retained.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the combination occurs, the
Company reports provisional amounts for the items for which the accounting is incomplete, Those provisional amounts are adjusted
through goodwill during the measurement period, or additional asseis or liabiliiies are recognised, to reflect new information obtained
about facts and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date that, if known, would have affected the amounis recognized at that
date. These adjustments are called as measurement period adjustmenis. The measurement period does not exceed one year from the
acquisition date.
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Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders of Company by
the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. The weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the period is adjusted for events such as bonus issue and share split that have changed the number of equity shares
outstanding that have changed the number of equity shares oulstanding, without a corresponding change in resources.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period aitributable to equity shareholders of the
Company and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the pericd are adjusied for the effect of all potentially dilutive
equity shares,

Significant management judgements in applying accounting policies and estimation uncertainty

The preparaticn of the Company’s Standalene Ind AS Financial Statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounis of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the related disclosures.

Significant management judgements
The following are significant management judgements in applying the accounting policies of the Company that have the most significant
effect on the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements.

Recognition of deferred tax assets

The extent to which deferred tax assets can be recognized is based on an assessment of the prebability of the future iaxable income
against which the deferred tax assets can be utilized and management's estimate of utifizing book value of certain portions of land
parcels for the purposes other than the company’s hotel busmess on aferesaid land and their correspending indexed costs for tax
purpose:

Impairment of financial assets
At each balance sheet date, based on histerical default rates cbserved over expected life, the management assesses the expecied
credit-loss on outstanding fi nanmal assets.

Evaluation of indicators for impairment of assets :
The evaluation of applicability of indicators of impairment of assets requires assessment of several external and internal factors which
could result in deterioration of recoverable amount of assets.

Provisions including contingent liabilities

Legal proceedings covering a large range of matters are pending against the Company. Due to uncertainty inherent in such matters, itis
often difficult to predict the final outcomes. The cases and claims against the Company ofien raise difficult and complex factual and legal
issues that are subject o many uncertainties and complexities, including but not limited to the facts and circumstances of each particular
case and claim, the jurisdiction and the differences in applicable iaw, in the normal course of business, the Company consults with legal
counsel and certain other experts on matiers related fo litigations. The Company accrues a liability when it is determined that an adverse
outcome is probable, and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. In the event an adverse cuicome is possible, or an
estimate is not determinable, the matter is disclosed. Accordingly, al each balance sheet date basis the management judgment, changes
in facts and legal aspects, the Company assesses the requirement of provisions against the outstanding contingent liabilities. However,
the actual future cutcome may bé different from this judgement.

Significant estimates

Useful lives of depreciable/famortizable assets

Management reviews its estimate of the useful lives of depreciable/amortizable assets at each reporting date, based on technical
assessment of the remaining expectad useful lives of depreciable assets carried out by an independent valuer. Uncertainties in these
estimates relate to technical and economic obsolescence that may change the utility of assels,

Defined benefit obligation {(DBO)

Management's estimate of the DBO is based on a number of underlying assumplicns such as standard rates of inflation, mortality,
discount rate and aniicipation of future salary increases. Variation in these assumptions may significantly impact the DBO amount and
the annual defined benefii expenses. Related year end obligations are determined on the basis of actuarial valuation carmried out by an
independent actuary.

Fair value measurements
Management applies valuation technigues to determine the fair value of financial instruments (where active market quotes are not
available). This invoives developing estimates and assumptions consistent with how market participants would price the instrument.

Leases - Company as lessee:




Apeejay Surrendra Park Hotels Limited
Notes to the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements as at and for the period ended 31 March 2021

Determining the lease term of contracts with renewal and termination options

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, logether with any pericds covered by an option to
extand the lease if it is reasonably cerlain to be exercised, or any periods covered by an option to ferminate the lease, if it is reasonably
certain not to be exercised,

The Company has several lease contracts that include extension and termination options. The Company applies judgement in evaluating
whether it is reasonably certain whether or not to exercise the option to renew or terminate the lease. That is, it considers all relevant
factors that craate an economic incentive for it to exercise either the renewal or termination. After ihe commencement date, the
Company reassesses the lease term if there is a significant event or change in circumstances that is within its control and affects its
ability to exercise or not to exercise the option to renew or to terminate {e.g., construction of significant leasehold improvements or
significant customization to the leased asset).

Extension options (or periods after termination options) are only included in the lease term if the lease is reasonably certain to be
extended (or not terminated). Exiension options in given in scme of the guest houses to the lessee, which have been included in the
lzase liability because company requires the guest house for future period, location of guest house is prominent and lease rentals are
reasonable. There is no future cash outflow in respect to exiension and termination option which is not included in the lease liability.

Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Company cannct readily determine the interest rate impticit in the lease, therefore, it uses its incremental borrowing rate (IBR) io
measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that the Company wouid have to pay to borrow over a similar e, and with a
similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment.
The IBR therefore reflects what the Company “would have to pay’, which requires estimation when no chservable rates are available
(such as for companies that do not enter into financing transactions) or when they need to be adjusted fo reflect the terms and conditions
of the lease {for example, when leases are not in the Company’s functional currency). The Company estimates the IBR using observable
inputs (such as market interest rates) when available and is regquired to make cerlain entity-specific estimates (such as the Company's
stand-alone credit rating).

2.3. Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

New and amended standards and interpretations

The new and amended standards that are nctified and are effective, up to the date of issuance of the Company's Standalone Ind AS
Financial Statements are disclosed below.

Amendments to Ind AS 103 Business Combinations

The amendments to the definition of a business in Ind AS 103 help entities determine whether an acquired set of activities and assets is
a business or nol. They clarify the minimum requiremenis for a business, remove the assessment of whether market participants are
capable of replacing any missing elements, add guidance to help entilies assess whether an acquired process is substantive, narrow the
definiticns of a business and of outputs, and introduce an optional fair value concentration test.

These amendments are applicable to business combinations for which tha acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first annual
reparting period baginning on or after the 1 April 2020 and to asset acauisitions that accur ¢n or after the beginning of that period. These
amendments have no impact on the Company's Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

i. Amendments to Ind AS 1 and Ind AS 8: Definition of Material

The amendments to Ind AS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements and ind AS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates
and Errors align the definition of ‘material’ across the standards and clarify certain aspects of the definition. The new definition states
that, “Information is material if omitting, misstating or cbscuring it could reasonably be expected to influence decisicns that the primary
users of general purpose financial statements make on the basis of those financial statements, which provide financial information about
a spedific repoiting entity. The amendments clarify that materiality will depend on the nature or magnitude of information, either
individually or in combination wilh other information, in the context of the financial stalements.

A misstatemeant of information is material if it could reasonably be expecled to influence decisions made by the primary users. These
amendments are applicable prospectively for annual periods beginning on or after the 1 April 2020. These amendments have no impact
on the Company's Standalone ind AS Financial Statements.

Amendmenits to Ind AS 107 and ind AS 109: Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

The amendments to Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments: Recegnition and Measurement provide a number of refiefs, which apply to all
hedging refationships ihat are directly affected by inleresi rate penchmark reform. A hedging relationship is affected ¥ the reform gives
rise (o uncertainties about the timing and or amount of benchmark-based cash flows of the hedged item cr the hedging instrument. The
amendments to ind AS 107 prescribe the disclosures which entities are required to make for nedging refationships to which the reliefs as
per the amendments in Ind AS 109 are applied. These amendments are applicable for annual periods beginning on or after the 1 April
5020, These amendmenis have no impact on the Company's Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements.
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Apeejay Surrendra Park Hotels Limited
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements as at 31 March 2021
(All amounts in INR Crores, unless otherwise stated)

4. Other lntangible assets

Computer Softwares -(Acquired)  Computer Seftwares - Brand Goodwill Totad
Particulars {Design)
Gross block
Balance as at 1 April 2019 511 0.87 - - 5.98
Additions / adjusiments during the period ( refer note 52) 8.27 - 0.84 - 1.11
Additions on acquisition  ( refer note no. 52) 0.20 - 30.00 22.81 53.01
Ralance as at 31 March 2020 6.568 0.87 30.84 22.81 §C.10
Additions / adjustments during the peried 013 - - - 013
Balance as at 31 March 2021 572 6.87 30,84 22.81 60,23
Accumulated Amortisation
Balance as al 1 April 2019 3.10 - - - 3.10
Amaortisation charge during the period 114 - 1.05 - 2.19
Balanee as at 31 March 2020 4,24 - 1.0 - §.29
Amortisation charge during the period 098 0.10 1.60 - 2.69
Balance as at 31 March 2021 5.22 ¢.10 2.55 - 7.88
Net block
Balance as at 31 March 2020 1.34 0.87 29.79 22.81% 54,814
Balance as at 31 March 2021 0.50 0.77 28,29 22.81 52,35
&A. Right of use asset
Particulars Land Building Total
[Refer (a) beiow] [Refer (b} below]
Balance as of 1 April 2018 - 1.34 134
Reclassified on account of adoplion of Ind AS 118 {Refer Note-3) 77.07 - 77.07
Additions during the period - 3502 35.02.
Additions on acquisition of confectionary business of Flury ( refer note no. 52) - 4.45 4.45
Deletions during the pericd - (0.01) (0.0%)
Amorlisation during the period C {147} {1.22} {2.69)
Balance as at 31 March 2020 75,60 39.58 116.18
Additions during the periad - 410 4.10
Deletions during ke periad - {0.30} (0.30)
Amortisation during the pericd (1.45) {2.92) {4.37)
Balance as at 31 March 2021 7415 40.46 114,61
Balance as at 31 March 2020 75.60 39.58 115.18
Balance as at 31 March 2021 74.15 4046 114,61
(@) Land includes leasehoid land .
(b) Building includes Guest houses, Restauranl premises, Club and shop.
6B. Investment properties
Particutars Investment Total
properties *
Balance as of 1 April 2018 142.96 142,96
Depreciation during the period 8.76) (0.76)
Balance as at 31 March 2020 142.20 142.20
Depreciation during the perfod {0.76} {0.76}
Balance as at 31 March 2021 141.44 141,44
Met bleck
Balance as at 31 March 2020 142.20 142.20
Ralance as at 31 March 2021 141.44 141.44

* vestiment propecies prirnarily consists of leasehald land taken for a continuous period o
20200 1R 146.78 crores) for expanding its holel business. Subseguently,
dedision on the extent to which each such land parcel may be used for purposes ofher than
INR 15.10 crores {31 March 2020: INR 16,54 crores) arising from difference batween book values

the Company has been actively considering opporlunities for development and sale of
the Company's hotel business, management has considerad it appropriate lo recognise deferred tax assel aggragating
of those portiens of tand pareels that, based on maragements best estimate which 15 reassessed at each reporting

dale, are kely to be used for purposes other than the Company's hotel business on aroreggjﬁand@fir corresponding indexed costs for tax purposes.
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f 99 years. In prior years, the Company had acquired certaln parcel of lands aggregaling to INR 146.78 crores (31 March
portions of each such land parcel. Pending a final



Apeejay Surrendra Park Kolels Limited
Notes to the Stapdalone Financial Statements as at 31 March 2021
{All amounts in INR Crofes, ualess olhenvise stated)

Asal
31 March 2021

Asat
31 March 2020

[

9

investment in subsidiaries
Unquaoted eguity shares
In subsidiaries {equily share of INR 10 each) {at rost)

5,200 Equity Shares (31 March 2020 - 5,200 cquity shares) of INR 10 each fully paid uﬁ in Apeejay Charler Private Limited

10,000 Equity Shares (31 March 2020 - 10,000 equily shares} of INR 10 each fully paid up in Apeefay Hotels & Restaurants

Private Limited

10,000 Equily Shares (31 March 2020 - Nil equily shares) of INR 10 each fully pald up in Apecfay Norh West Holels

Private Limited

Aggregate markel value of quoted invesiments
Aggregale value of unquoted lovesimenis

Altthe inveslement in equily shares of subsidiary are stated al cost as por IND AS 27 "Separate financial statemenls”,

Invesiments

[At fair value through Profit & Loss {FVTPL}]

In ather company

19 Equily Shares {31 Mamch 2020 - 10) of INR 10 each fully paid up in Artistery House Private Limied

9,000 Equily Shares (31 March 2020 - 9,000) of INR 10 each fully paid up in Green frlra Wind Farms Limited
12,000 Equity Shares (31 March 2020 - 12,000} of INR 10 each Ialy paid up in Green Infra Wind Generalian Limited

Aggregale value of unquoted investments
* Belaw roundlng off narms

toans (Non Current)

{Unsecured, consldered good unless othenwise slated )
t oan o & body corparate (Credit impakred)

Less: Loan receivable - eredil impaired

Loans lo employees

Security Depasils
Caonsldered Good
Credil Impalred

Less: Seeurily Deposils- credit impaired

Qther fipancial assels {Non Gurrent)
Margin meney vith banks (refer note 15}

Tex assels [Non Cumrend)
{Unsecwed, considered good)
Advance income fax (Net of provision for tax)

Other assets {(Non Current}
Unsecured considerad guod, unless otherwise staled)
Capital advances

Considered Good

Creditimpaired

Less: Capilal Advance - credit Impairer]
Advances recoverabie In kind

Credit impalred

Less; Advance receivable - credit impaired
Others

Ceferred Slali Cost

Deposit with statutory authoritles under protest

Balance with government atheritiss

Share 1ssue Expenses (Refer Nolc 52)

Prepaid expenses

o0

0.01

0.01

0,03

0,03

Asal
31 March 2021

0.01
0.01
0.02

0.02

As at
31 March 2024

230
2.30) -
0.03
2835
0.92
927
0.92} 835
As at
31 March 2021
318
219
Asat
31 March 2021
343
343
Asat
31 March 2021
315
0.30
(0.30) ' -
.81
{081}
0.0t
6,66
0GB
a.75

0.01

0.01

902

00z

Asg at

31 barch 2020

.01
601
.02

0.02

As at

31 March 202¢

230
(2.39) -

838
0.48
582
{0.48) 8.36

Asat
31 March 2020

299
2.99

As at

3% March 2020

3.48

Asat

31 March 2020

693
030
0.20} -
9.8%
{9.81) -
8.01
6.16
065
12.28
1.30

27.33



Apeejay Surrendra Park Holels Limited
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements as at 31 March 2021
{All amounts i INR Crores, unless otherswise slated)

Asal
31 March 2021

Asat
31 Macch 2020

12

fnventories
Raw Materials (at cost)
Pravisions, beverages (excluding wines and lquors) and smokes .19

Finished Good {at lower of cost and net realisable vaiue)
Cakes and Confectionaries -
Wines and liquars 5.81

Crockery, cullery, glassvare, lines, elo. 0.65
Slores and spares parts 1.91
9.56

As at

31 March 2821
Trade receivables
(Unsecured)

Frade receivables 17.90

Total trade recaivables 17.90

Break up is as under:

Unsecured, Considered good 17.60

Trade receivables -credil impaired 12,25
30.25

Impaiement allowance

Trade receivables -credil impaired {12.35}

Total trade receivables 17.90

Trade recelvables are non interest beasing and generally on terms of 60 to 90 days
Trade receivables have been pledged as a secuity for borrowing, refer nols no. 22 & 27 for detalls.

Asat
31 March 2024

Cash and cash equivalents
Gash on hand*#

Cheques on hand -
Balances with banks:
- On current accounts

* Gash on hand includes forefgn currency on hand.
# Includes corporale credit card

As al
31 March 2021
Cther bank batances
Beposits wilh maturity mare an 3 months and fess than 12 moaths
Less: margin money disclosed (Refer Note 9)

340

As at
31 March 2021
Loans [Current)
(Unsecured, coasidered good , unless othenwvise slated)

Loan Lo a body corperate [fnchuding lean lo related parly of INR 2.48 crores (31 March 2020: INR 3.38 Crores)] 11.25
Loan tc Employses 0.10
Security deposils 0.68

Loans to body corporate carries interest al rate of 0% p.a and is repayable on demand.

Asat
__ S Marchz0z1

Other financial assets {Current}
{Unsecured considered gootf, unless atherwise stated}
Interest accrued on deposits and leans

Gonsidered good

Credit impafred i32

Less: Allowance for ceedil impaired recefvables (1.33) -
Olher receivables *

* Other receivables include cenliact assels i.e. unbillad revenue of INR 015 crores (21st March, 2020 1 INR 0.25 crores)

As at

Gther assels {Current)
{Unsecured considsred good, unless sthervwise staled)
Advance recoverable in kind
Gonsidered good 2.82
Credil impaired 1.34
Loss: Alfowance far credit impakred advances {1.34)
Advance to Employsas
Considerad good 0.08

Credil inpaired .85

Less: Allowance for expecled credit advances (0.85) -
Prepaid expenses 476
Accrued duty exernption benefit * 275

Deferred sltaff cost . a.01
Balances wilh stalulory aulhorities **

Considered good 0.75

Considered daubtful 008

Less : Allowance for cradit impaired advances {0.08) -
$1.17

* Accrued duly exemption benefil consisl of amounts Receivable towards Seived From India Scheme (SFES) on accounl of free foreign exchange ¢amed during lhe period.

133
{1.33)

1.56

0,03
877
0.72
2.16
11.24

As at
31 March 2020

20.48
11.13
31.59

(1113
20,48

As at
31 March 2020

As at
31 March 2020

218
2.99)
.19

Asat
31 March 2020

Asal
31 March 2020

2,18

053

B (0.63)

0.85
(0.85)

o.08
{0.08)

As at
31 March 2020

u.10

.03
t.79
0.02

048

4 |nciudes amounts realisable from relovant autheritles in respec! of GST and value added tax. These are generally reallsed within one yeer or regulariy utilised to offsel the GST liabilily and value added Lax llabillly of the Company.

Accordingly, Ihese balances have been classifted as curren! assets.




Apeejay Surrendra Park Hotels Limited
Notes to the Standalene Financial Statements as at 31 March 2021
{all ameunts in INR Crores, unless othenwise stated)

19 Equily share capital

Authorised eguity share capHal: Number of Shares Amount
As at 01 April 2619 {equily shars of INR 10 each) 20,000,000 20.00
Changes during the yaar (refer (v) below) 180,000,000 -

Tncrease during the year 150,006,000 15.00
As at 31 March 2020 (eguily share of INR 1 each) - 350,000,000 35,00
As at 3 March 2021 {eguily share of INR 1 each) 350,000,000 35,00

{ssued, subscribed and paid-up
Equily shares of INR 1 each, issued subscribed and fully paid up

As at 1 Aprit 2019 {equity share of INR 10 each} 17,466,176 17.47
Changes during the year {refer {v) betaw ) 157,195,584 -
As at 31 March 2020 {equity share of INR 1 each) 174,661,760 17.47
As at 31 March 2021 {equity share of INR 1 each) 174,661,760 1747
3] Terms and fights attached to equity shares

The Gompany hes only ane class af equity shares referred to as equily shares having a par value of INR 1 per share. Each Sharehelder is entilled to ane vote per share held. The dividend proposed by ihe Board of Direciors is
subject ta the approval of sharehclders in (e ensulng Annual Generaf Meating, exceplin case of interim dividerd. In Ike event of Equidalion, the equity shareholders are eligible te recefve the remaining assets of the Company
after distribution of all preferential amounis, if any, the dislribution will be in proporion to number of equity shares held by the sharehelders.

iy Details of shares held by shareholders holding mose than 5 % of the aggregate shares in the Gompany.
As at Asat
31 March 2021 31 tarch 2020
" Number of Shares o Number of .
Particulars hald % Shares held %
Flurys Swiss Confectionary Private Limiled 52,500,000 30.06% 52,500,000 20.06%|
Apeejay Private Limlled 34,457,500 19.75% 34,497,500 19.75%
Apenjay Surrendra Trust 30,002,400 17.18% 30,002,400 17.18%
Apeejay Engineering Private Limited 14,500,000 8.30% 14,500,000 8.30%)|
Apeejay Agoncles Private Limiled 14,500,000 8.30% 14,500,000 8.30%|
Apeejay House Prvate Lhnited 14,500,000 8.30% 14,500,000 8.30%|
RECF IV Park Hotel Investors Limited 9,666,340 5.53% 13,666,100 1.82%)|
(i) Shares held by ar investing party in respect of which the Company {s an assaciate
Qut of equily shares issued by the company, shares held by he investing parly in respecd of which Ihe Company is an associate are as below:
Asal As af
31 March 2029 31 Mareh 2020

Flurys Swiss Canfectionary Private Limiled

52,560,000 cquily shares al INR 1 each (31 bfarch 2020: 52,500,000 equity shares af INR 1 each) 5.25 525

{iv) Aggregate number of equity shares bought back during the period of five years immediately preceding the reporting date:
Drring the year ended March 31, 2018, 14,16, 177 equily shares were boughl back by the Company.

(v}  Changes in autherized , issued, subscribed and pald up shares
Pursuant Lo a resolulion of shareholders dated, Celober 25, 2019, each equity share of face value of INR 10 each has been split inlo ten equity shares af lace value of INR 1 each. Accaordingly, the autherized capital and
tsstied, subscribed & paid up capital of the Company is subdivided from 20,000,000 equity shares of face value of INR1C each lo 200,600,000 equity shares of face value of INR 1 each and 17,456,176 aquity shares of face
value of INR10 each lo 174,661,760 equily shares of face vatue of INR 1 each respectively. Furlher, authorized share capilal of lie corpany has been increased by 150,000,000 during the year ended 21 March 2020,

As at Asat’
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
¢ Other equity
Reserves and Surplus
Gapital Redemplion Reserve 141 141
Securilies Premium 183.81 183.81
General Reserve 7874 78.74
Retained Eamings 255,08 328.94
£19.04 592.90
(i} Capital redempticon reserve
Balance at the beglnning of the year 141 141
Balance at ihe end of the year 1.41 141
(i} Securities premium
Balance at the beginning of the year i83.81 183.81
Balance at the end ol the year ) 183,81 183.81
(i) General reserve
Balance al the beginning of the year 1874 7874
Balance at the end ol the year 1874 7874
{v} Retained earnings
Balance at \he beginning of the year * 328.94 30677
Tolal comprehensive income recagnised for the year (73.85) 2217
Balance as at tho end of lhe year 255.09 32894
Total 519.04 592.90

Natura and purpose of reserves

Capital redemption reserve
Capltal redemplion reserve represenls amoun! arsen pursuanl te Scheme of Amalkgamalion and on accounl of buy back of shares.

Securtties premitum
Secwiilies premium represents prenium received on issuz of shares. The reserve will be wlilised in accordance with Uhe provisions of Companies Act, 2013 .

General reserve

General reserve represents a free reserve not held for any specific purpose.
Retained sarings e 1h
Retained eamings are the profifs that the Company has eamed |l date, less any lransfer Lo generat resewﬁ’agprm:rfanr)ﬂ tordrds dividends or olher distributions paid 1o shareholders, as applicabla.
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Agat
31 March 2021
Lease Liabifities {Non Gurrent)
Lense Liabililies {refer note 45) j2.38
T 1335

As at
3 March 2021
Long term Borrowings

Secured term foans

Asat
31 March 202¢

11.01
1.01

As at
31 March 2020

fram Banks
Rugpee loans 458.60 425 80
Foreign curmency [oans - 12.50
- 466.60 438.30
fzefer Note-28 for amount disclosed under olher tiablities as 'Cuirent rnaturities of lang-term borrowings'
Repayment terms and security disclosure for oulsta nding long term borrowing 2s en 31 March 2621
(i} Rupee Loan from 2 Bank amounling to INR 104.53 Crores {31 March 2020: INR 160.00 Crores} is securad by way of Equitable Mortgage by deposit of tille deed of immovablie propery of the Holding situaled at Hyderabad as

firsl charge and alse to be secured by way of hypothecation by way of first charge on \he enlire movable fixed assels siualed al Hyderabad, hoth present and folure, ranking pari passu with other banks for their loans. Such
10an (having origina! loan amount of Rs. iNR 100,00 Crores as at dale of Inceplion} is being revised 1o INR 104.53 Grores on account of moraterium in cerrent perfod and have a below revised repaymend schedole ©

_ first instaliment of INR 2,11 Crores starting from September 30, 2022, foflowed by
- 21 equal quarterly installments of INR 3.87 Craores,

- 3 equal quarierdy installments of MR 3.88 Crares,

- 1 cqual quarledy islallments of INR 4.77 Crores ang

-1 instellments of INR 3.64 Crores on 30 December 2028,

(] Rupee Loan from a Bank amounling lo INR 45.00 Crores (31 March 2020: INR 46.43 Crores) secured by way of Equilable Mardnage by deposit of fiile deed of immovable propery of the Holding situaled at Hyderabad as lirst
charge and alse to be secuted by way of hypothecation by way of first charge on \he entire movable fixed assels silualed at Hyderabad, both present and future, ranking pari passu with other banks for their loans. Such foan
{having original Ioan amounl of INR 50.00 Crores as al dale of inceplion) is being revised 1o IR 48,20 Crares on accounl of moralofium in curreat peried and have a below revised repayment schedule -

- 30 equal guarlerly instalments of INR 1,52 crores and
- ¢ equal quaredy instaliments of INR 1.33 crores.

{iily Rupes Loan {rom a Bank amounling lo iNR 61.35 Crores (31 March 2020: INR 65.50 Grores} Is secured by way of morigage by depasit of fitfe deed of immovable propesty of lhe Holding silualed at Kolkata as first charge
ranking pari passu wilh other banks for their loans. Stch lean {having origing! toan amounl of INR 100,00 Grores as at dale of inception) Is befng revised to INR 68,70 Ceores on account of micratorium T eurrent period and

have a below revised repayment schedule:

- 7 quadterly instaliments of INR 3.87 crores, rapayment startlng from 43 May, 2021, folloved by
- & quarlerly inslaliments of INR 2.93 Creres and

- 1 installment of INR 4.20 Crores on 13 Feh, 2025.

vy Rupee Loan from & Bank amounting to INR 70.27 Crores {31 March 2020: INR 69.00 Crores) i secured by way of morigage by deposk of litie deed of immovable properdy of the Holding siluated at Kolkala 85 firsi charge
ranking par passu with other banks [or iheir loans. Such lean thaving arigial loan amount of INR 75.00 Crores as at dale of inception) is being revised {o INR 73.42 Crores on accounl of moratodum in cusrent period and have

& below revised repayment schedule:

- 4 quarlerly fnstalilmenis of INR 1.57 Crores, repaymest slarling from 20 June, 2021, foflowed by
- 8 installments of iNR 3.15 Crores

- 8 instailment of INR 4.20 Crores and

- finslaliment of INR §.24 Crores.

({3 Rupee t.0an from a Bank amounling lo INR 78.05 Crores (31 wharch 2020: INR 75.00 Crores) is secured by way of Morigage by deposit of litle deed of immovable propady ef the Holding situated al Kolkala as first charge
ranking pari passu wilh othsr banks for their Inans. Such loan (having originat loan amount of INR 75.00 Crares as at date of inception) Is being revised to INR 78.4B Crores on aceount of moratosium in current perindand tave

a below revised repayment schedule:

- 10 quartarly installiments of INR 0.20 Crores,repaymen starting 31 May, 2021 followed by:
- 4 instaliments of INR 0.98 Crores,

- 4 instalimesnts of INR 2.35 Crores,

- 8 installments of INR 5.49 Crores and

- 3 installment of IR 6.28 Crores.

{viy Foreign Guirency Loan from 3 Bank amaunting o INR 24.85 Crores (31 March 2020 -INR 37,56 Grores} is sccured by hypalhecation by way of firsl charge for their loan on alt lie plant & maclinery alached to the earih or
penmanently faslened o anylhing attached to lhe earth, both present and future, of the Holding unit situaled a Bangaiore and by way of equitable moilgage for thoir loan by daposit of e deeds of Immavable propedy of the
Holding situated at Bangatore, ranking pan passu wilh other banks for their loans. Such oan thaving anginat loan amouni of USD 1.33 crores as at date of inceplion} is being revised to USD 0.34 crores on accounl of

maratoriun in cusenl period which is Lo be repald In twa half-yearly inslaiments of USD 0.17 crores each starling from Augusl 28, 2021,

{viiy Rupes Loan from a Bank amounting lo INR 60.00 Crares {31 March 2020: INR 80.00 Crores) secured by way of Equilable Morigage by doposit of tille deed of immovable property of (he Holding situated al Kolkata and Vizag
as flest charge and also to ba secured by way of hypolhecation by way of firsl charge on the entire movabte fixed assels situated at Kolkala and Vizag, both present and fulure, ranking pan passi with other banks for Iheir loans.
Such loan (having originat loan amount of INR 60 Srores as at date of inceplion) is being revised to INR 61.31 Crores on account of moratorum In current period and have below revised repayment schedule:

- 4 quarlerly inslallment of INR Rs.1.50 Crores, repayment starting fom 19 June, 2021 followeed by
- 4 installments of INR 2.25 Crores,

- 4 instaliments of INR 2.75 Crares,

- 4 instalinents of INR 3.50 Croses, and

- 4 inslaliments of K4R 5,00 Crores,

(v Rupee Loan from a Bank amounting la IR 32,63 Crores 31 March 2020: INR 40,00 Grores) secured by way of Equitable Morigage by deposit of lilte deed of Immovable property of the Holding situated al Mavi Murmbai as
firsl charge and also to be secured by way of hypolhecation by waay of lirst charge an Ihe entire movable fixed assels sitaled at Mavi Mumbal, both present and fulure, ranklng pan passu wilh ofher banks for their loans. Such
toan {having criginal loan amount of INR 40.06 Crores as 21 dale of inception) s being revised 1o IMR 41.25 Crores on secount of moratorium in current period and have belovs revised repayment scheduls:

_ o ipstalimenls of INR 2.86 Crores, repayment slasling fram Juno 13, 2021 folfowed by
- 1 instalmenis of INR 4.07 Crores.

{ix} Repec Loan from 2 Bank amaunting to !NR 48.06 Crores (31 March 2020; Nil ) secured by viay of the Facility logether with Inleresl, additional Tnteresl, liquidated damages, cost, charges, expenses and ali other mories

whatsoever and is secured by:

1) Second chamge over The Park, Kolkata

2) Second chamge over The Park, Vizag

3) Second pari passu charge over The Paik, Bengaiuru

4) Second pari passu charge over current assels of lhe company.

Such Inan Is tepayable in 48 equal monthly instaliments of Rs 1,00 Grores slarling from 315t January 2022,

{x) Rupee Loan from & Bank amaunting to INR 15.41 Grores {21 March 2026: Nit) socuted by way of the Facility logether with Inlerest, adgiional Interest, liguidated damages, cost, charges, expenses and alt other monies

whatseever and is secured by:

1)Pdmary Security on alf assets created oul of the GEGL Loan acquired oul of the facilily amounts over which firsl charge is created
2) Second pari passu charge over The Park, Bengaluiu

3) Secend part passu charge over The Park, Hyderabad

43 Second charge on all Primary securities avaifable for the exisling facilifies willh Federal Bank.

Such [0an s repayable in 48 monthly instaliments ranging form Rs. 0.23 Crores - 038 Crores stating from 221h Feb 2022,

{xi) Rupee Loan [rom a Bank amounling lo INR 2.73 Crores (31 March 2620: il ) 100% cradil guaraniee by Mational Credil Guarantee Trust Company Limied.
Such Ioan is repayable in 80 equal monthly inslaiiments starting fram 16lh April 2022,
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{xit Vehicle loans aggregaling INR 59 Crares (31 March 2020: INR 88 Crores) from banks are secursd by way of hypothecation of vehicles financed. Repayable in monthly instalfmants ranging between 36 and 80 nslaliments.

(i) Inlerest rales on Rupee Loans are varying in the range of 8.35% (6 10.85% p.a. in the current period. Inlerest rales on Foreign Currency loans {USD) are varying i the range of 2.81% fo 4.10% margin on & mantit LIBOR

during the current period.

{xiv) The amounts slated in footnotes (i) to (xdf) above are inclusive of any amounls disclosed vnder Guirent Maturities of Leng Tean Borrewings, if any.

o) In accordance with the RBI guidelines related to Covid-19 Regulatory Package dated March 27, 2020 and May 22, 2020, lhe Company opled for moratorium of five o six months for the payment af all principal and inlerest

perlaining to lerm feans availed from ICIC Bank, Yes Rank, HDOFS Bank and Federal Bank falling due between March 2020 to Augusl 2020, The Company received the form:

a1 approval for meralorium from all the aforementioned banks.

(xv The Company has defauiled in repayment of certain mstalments for loan from 1CICI Bank Limited, HDFC Bank Limited and Federal Bank Limited [inctuding interesl due for repayment] ¢uring the year snded March 31, 2024, Such

amounts have subsequently been pald, including interes! for delayed pariod. There have been delays ranging from 5 (o 88 days from
catcutated from the revised dates as menlioned in point aumber {xv} above. Based on management's interaclion with the concemed banks, ne

regand to delay in repayimen of borrowings.

lite diue dates and overall thero were delays in 8 such inslalmenls. The default days have been
adverse financial impact is expected on these lad AS Standalone Finanelal Slalements vtk

Further wilh respect breach of cerain covenanls for borovings that were observed during the year, basts lhe managemenl assessmen! and lnteraclion with fenders, no financial Impact s reguired in these Ind AS Standalone Financal

Statements. Alsa, classification of such horrowings have heen made basis cenfirmation received from Tenders for cartenl repayment sehedule. Such classi

tiHole: Borrowlngs are net of EIR adjusiment}

23 Other non currend financial Habilities

Security deposil received

24 Provisions {don Current)
Provision lor Gratuily (refer note 43)

2

@

Lease iahilities - Current
Lease Liabilities {refer note 45)

2

jard

Borrowings - Current

Fram banks
Working capital [oans*# (Secured)
Warkfng capital Loans*# (Unsecured)

" Working capital loans comprises of:

As at
31 March 2021

0.02
.62

As at
31 March 2021

732
7.32

Asat
31 March 2021

2.11
211

As at
31 March 2021

342
19.80

51.22

fication is consistent with the lerms of respective loan agreements.

As at
31 March 2020

003

Asat
31 March 2020

820
8.20

Asat
31 March 2020

147
147

Asat
31 March 2020

18.66
28.79

48.45

(&) Amount of INR 31.42 crofes as al 31 March 2021 wiiich is secured by firsi charge by way of hypothecation of invenlories, book debts and other curren! assels, both present and future, of the Company ranking pari passy

where applicable, with the other tenders far their loans, (Refer note 51).

(b) Amount af INR 16.80 crares as al 31 March 2021 which is securad by second charge on immaovahle propedy situated a1 Bangalore hoth presend and future, of the Company ranking

[oans. {Refer nole §2).

Interest rates on Working Gapital loans ate varying in the range of 9% to 11% p.a.

# Sueh working capital laans are repayable within twelve months from availing of respective Joans in differen! respeclive instalments oc are repayable on demand.

pari passu with the other fenders [or their

Noter- The Gempany has delaulied in repayment of certain inslalments for loan from |G Bank Limited, HDFG Bank Limiled, Yes Bank timited and DBBS Bank Limited [including interest due {or repayment] during the year ended

March 31, 2021, Such amounts have subsequenlly been pald, including Interest for delayed period, There have bee
The default days have been calculated from the revised dates as mentfoned in Note 22 {xv}. Based on managemen!

Financial Statements with regard Lo delay in repaymenl of boqovings.

28 Trade Payables

Dues te micro enferprises and small enterprises (reler nole 40}

Dues 1o other than micro enterprises and small enferprises
{including dues lo related pariles 31 March 2021: Nil, 31 March 2020: MNily

0] Trade payable (except MSME) are non-interssl bearing and are normally selffed within 90-120 days.

iy Trade payable include due to related paries, refer Naote 44.

As at

213

4221
34,34

n defays Fanging from 1 to 42 days froem the due dates and overall there vere defays in 15 such instalmenls.
t's inleraciion with the concemad banks, ne adverse flnancial impact is expected on these Ind AS Standalane

As af
31 March 2020

1.00

43.28
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As at Asal
I March 2021 31 iarch 2020
29 Other financial Fabilities {current) .
Curreni maturities of long-lerm debt 72.50 53.87
interest accrued but not due on boravings 0.38 0,82
Book overdrafl 0.29 020
Capital liabllilies 3.99 4.18
Emplayee benelils payable 13.57 1508
Financial guarantes obligation 0.01 0.014
Purchase Consideralion Payable 0.27 28,27
Secunty deposils received 0.29 0.15
91.30 A TY T
Asat Asal
31 March 2021 31 Marcl 2020
a0 Provisions {Current)
Provision for gratuity (refer note 43) 4.10 292
Provision for compensaled absences 4.65 4.87
8.75 779
Asat As at
31 March 2621 31 March 2020
31 Other lizhilities {Curent}
Statutory dues 412 4.53
Conlracl liabilities * 246 328
Defered Revenue 1.81 1.75
T 8as 7 ass

* Conlrac! lizbilities are advences received from custarmers and are non-interest bearing.
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25 Deferred tax liabilities (net)

As at
31 Mareh 2021

As at
31 March 2020

{a} Compeonent of Deferred tax Hakbilities (net} {refer note A below)
Deferred tax liabilities

Arising on account of temporary dilferences in :

Acceleraled depreciation for tax purposes

Right of Use Assels

Gross deferred tax liabilities

Deferred tax assets

Adising on account of temporsry differances in :

Lease Liabifities

Unabsorbed depreciation and brought forward business Josses
Allowed only on payment hasis

MAT credit entitterent {refer {i) below)

Gross deferred tax assels

Net deferred tax liabilities (including MAY credit entitfement}

{b} Reconciliation of deferred tax liabilities:

Opening batance as of Aprit 1

Tax income during the period recognised in Staterent of Profit and Loss

Tax expense/(income) during the period recognised in Other Comprehensive Income
MAT credil enlilernent

Closing Balance as at end of the period

108.41 95 51
365 2,07
112.76 99.58
402 3.24
40.78 17.51
9.30 9,67
25.48 25.43
79.58 5591
33.17 43.67
4367 61.54
{10.49) (15.53)
{0.02) {0.6%)
- RARE)
3307 43.67

(i) The asset of INR 25.49 crores {31 March 2020 : INR 25.49 crores) recognized by the Company as "MAT credit entitlernent” represents the portion of MAT Eability, which can be recovered and set
off in subsequent years based on provisions of Section 115JAA of the Income tax Aclt, 1961. The management based on the present trend of profitability and also the future profilability projections, is
of the view that there would be sufficient laxable income in foreseeable future, which wilf enable the Company to utilize MAT credit assets.

(i} Deferred tax assel is recognized on unabsorbed depraciation to the exient it is probable that future taxable profils will be available against which the deductible temporary differences and
unabsorbed dapreciation can be utflised. The Company has tax losses of INR 156.86 crores (31 March 2020 : iNR 67.35 crores) in the form of unabsorbed deprecialion that are available for

offselting for unlimited period against futture faxahle profits. Company believes there is reasonable cerfainly that deferred tax assat will be recovered.

(¢) Movement in deferred tax liabilities, net
Movement in deferred tax liabilities for current year ended 21 March 2021:

Particulars

Recognized in

Recognized in

Deferred tax liabilities
Accelerated depreciation for {ax purposes
Right of Use Assels

Deferred tax assets

Unabsarhed depreciation and brought forward business losses
Lease Liabilities

Allowed onfy on payment basis/ others

MAT credit entittement

Net deferred tax liabitities

Movement in deferred tax liabilities for previous year ended 31 March 2020:

Particulars

Deferred tax Habilities

Accelerated depreciation for tax purposes
Right of Use Assels

Others

Deferred tax assets

Unabsorbed deprectalion and brought forward business losses
Lease Liabilities

Allowed only on payment basis

MAT credit entitlement

(i) Income tax expense reported in Statement of Profit or Loss comprises
Adjustmenl of tax releting Lo carlier periods

Deferred lax (credity/ charge

Income tax expense repoarted in the Statement of Profit and Loss

[ii) Income tax credit reported in Statement of Other Comprehensive Income comprises
Deferred tax credit en remeasurement losses on defined benefit obligations
Income tax credit reported in Statement of Other Comprehensive Income

{iii) Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by statutery income tax rate for the period indicated are as follows

Profit/{l.oss} before tax

Other Comprehensive Income

Total

Statutery income tax rate of 26 % { 31 March 2020 26%; *

Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible {taxable) in ealculating faxable income:
Adjustment of tax relating to earlier periods

Deferred tax liabililie on goodwill

Tax impact on indexation of investment property

True-up adjustmentsfothers

Balance as Balance as
at 31 March 2020 Statemant of ocl at 31 March 2021
Profit and Loss
96.51 (12,60 - 10811
3.07 {0.58) - 3,65
99.58 (13.18) - 112.76
17.51 (23.27) - 40,78
3.24 0.78) - 402
967 0.39 (0.02) 830
25.48 - - 25.49
55.91 (23.66) (0.02) 79.59
43,67 10.49 0,02 3317
Balance as Recognized in Recognized in Balance as
at 31 March, Statement of gniz act at 31 March,
2018 Profit and Loss 2020
120.01 23.50 - §6.51
- (3.07) - 3.07
0.01 0.01 - -
120,02 20,44 - 99,58
2583 8.32 - 17.51
- (3.24) 3.24
B.B7 {0.19) {0.64) 9.67
2378 (1.71) - 2548
5848 3,18 {0.67) 55,91
61.54 17.25 0.61 43.67
Year ended For Year ended 31
_ 3% March 2029 March 2020
- 0.04
{10.49) (15.53)-
{10.49) (15.49)
{0.02) {0.61)
{0.63) (0.61)
Year ended For Year ended 31
M March 2621 March 2020
(85.48) 704
1.12 (1.88)
{84.36) 6.05
{21.93) 1.58
- 0.04
5.93 -
1.45 -
4.05 {17.72)
110.51) (16.10)

o . .,
Ty S VRS
*The Company conlinues to pay income tax under older lax regi}lééw% has not é?pged{pr lewer tax rate pursuant to Taxation Law {Amendment) Crdinance, 2019 considering the accumulaled MAT
credit, unabsarbed deprecialion alowance and other benefils l:l;zﬂgr-the Income Tax /—‘ié}, 1981,
P P

i

z
}
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Year ended
37 March 2021

Year ended
31 March 2020

3z

32.

32.

I

323

13

Revenue from Contracts with customers
Room revenue

Sale of food and beverage

Sale of wine and liguor

Other ancillary and aflied service income

QOther operating revenue

Management fees

Shop rentals

Liabililies no lenger required written back

Membership and subscription fees

Tetal revenue from centracts with customers

Timing of revenue recognition

Goods/service lransferred at a poinl of time

Service transferred over ime

Contract balances

Trade receivables fror contracts under under Ind AS 115

Contract assets ( refer note 17)

Contract lizbilities (refer note 31)

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally o terms of 60 to 80 days.

Contract fabiities include advances from customers.

Movement of contract liabilities

Amounts inciuded in contract liabiities at he beginning of the period

Amount received during the period

Parformance cbligation satisfied in current period from opening balance
Performance obligation satisfied i current period from amount received in cument period

Amounts included in contract liabilities at the end of the period ended 31 March 2021

Performance obligation

The performance obligation Is satisfied and payment is due upon receipi of the service received by the cuslomer. Transaction price al
salistied is INR 2.46 crores (31 March 2020: iNR 3,26 crores) . The same is expected to recognised wilhin next 12

Cther income

Interast on advances, depasils and tax refunds
Commission

Renlal income

Net gain on foreign currency translation

Provision for doubtiul debts no longer required written back

Insurance clalm

Miscelianzous income

83.02
47.42
30.46

5.65
166.55

2.74
2,82
2.28
.47
8.31
174.86

§1.64
83.02
174.86

As at
31 March 2021

17.90
C.15
2.46

As at
31 March 2021

396
18.42
{2.81)

{18.11)

2.46

Year ended
31 March 2021

3.00
0.06
0.30
1.07
0.09

243
£.65

\

193.41
107.60
83.20

18.02
402.83

4.89
274
4.33
0.99
12,95
415.78

222,37
193.41
415,78

As at
31 March 2020

2048
0.26
3.26

As at
31 March 2020

491
46.50

14.06)

(44.09)
326

located to performance obfigation not salisfied or partially

Year ended
31 March 2020

437
0.15
2.30

4.35

1.95
11.12
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Year ended Year endad
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
INR INR
34 Consumption of provisions, beverages, winsfliquor and smokes
(a) Provisions, beverages {excluding wine and liquor) and smokes
Inventory al the beginning as on 1 April 2020 1.56 0.87
Add : Stock acquisition from Flurys - Q.72
Add: Purchases during the peried 16.85 40.56
18.41 4225
Less: inventory at the end of 31 March 2021 1.06 1.56
17.34 40.69
{B}  Wine and liquor
) lnvenlory at the beginning as on 1 April 2020 6.77 884
Add: Purchases during the peried 815 20.47
14.92 29.1
Less: inventory at the end of 31 March 2021 5.81 6.77
.11 22.34
Total Gonsumption (a£h) 26.45 63.03
Yedr ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
35 Employees benefits expenses
Salaries, wages and bonus 4588 78.19
Canlribution 1o provident and other funds 4.34 534
Graluity (refer note 43} 1.88 1.82
Staff welfare expenses 1.52 4.69
53.62 90.04
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
36 Finance costs
Interest expanses on
Borrowings from banks 54.49 49.89
Lease liabiiilies 1.34 0.74
Others 0.31 0.41
56.14 £1.04
Year ended
Year ended 31 March 2020
31 March 2021
37 Depreciation and amortisation expense
Degpreciation on property, plant and equipment {refer ncle 3) 28.44 27.67
Deprecialion en investment properties (refer note 5B) 0.76 0.76
Amertisation of Right fo use assels (refer note 5A} 4.37 259
Amartisation of intangible assets (refer note 4}) 2.59 2.19
36,16 33.31
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Year ended Year ended
31 March 202% 31 March 2020
38 Other expenses

Power and fuel 17.38 . 34.84
Rent 1.67 1.89
Ratas and taxes 11.14 17 .49
Corporate social responsibility expense . 0.07 0.05
nsurance 2.7 2.92
Apariment expensas™ 2.53 7.65
Qutsourced contraclual expenses 4.38 9.95
Guest supplies 1.94 4.73
Replacement of cullery, crockery, glassware elc. 0.24 1.89
Advertisernent and sales promotion 3.4 7.68
Coramission 7.06 21.13

Repalr and maintenance
Repairs to bulldings . 1.67 3.66
Repairs to machinery 3.66 5.08
Repairs to others 2.49 5,60
Printing and stalionery 0.74 1.70
Postage, telephone and telex 1.34 1.92
Legal and professional Charges ** 6.58 20.14
Sacurity charges 1.47 431
Travelling and corweyance 0.98 5.83
Loss on disposal / sale of tangible assets a.25 1.30
Bad debis / advance wrilten off ) 0.70 1.21
Provision for doubtful debls and advances 236 431
Nel loss on foreign currency lransaction - 112
Miscellaneous expenses . 4.36 13.76
Payments to auditars [refer note 38 (i) below] 0.45 0.45
T T 180.48

* Apartmant expenses includes consumplion of stores supplies (inen, carpet & uphalstery, room decoration material, elc) made lo the rooms on account of service and other related cosls.
** Includes Royally, manageiment service fees Sirategic Advisory and Consullancy Fees

38 (i} Details of payment to auditors Year ended
Year ended 31 March 2020
31 March 2021

Payment to auditors

As auditors

- Audit fee for slandalene and consolidated financial statemenis 0.31 031

- Consolidated financial statements 0.03 0.00
in other capacities

- Other Senvices 2.53 -

- Out of pocket expenses Q.04 0.04

- G8Y 007 0.07

T s 0.45

Less: IPO Expenses transferred te Exceptional fems 253 -

Net Balance 0.46 0.45
As at
Year ended 31 March 2020

31 March 202%

39 Gomputation of Earnings per Equity Share

{a) (i} Number of Equity Shares at lhe beginning of the period # 174,861,760 174,661,760
(li) Nurnber of Equity Shares al the end of the period # 174,661,760 174,661,760
(8) Weighted average number of Equity Shares outsianding during the period # 174,661,760 174,861,760
(iv) Face Value of each Equily Share INR # 1 1
{b} Profit for the year (74.99) 23.44
(¢} Basic and Diluled Earnings per Share [{(b)/(z)il}] - INR # (4.29) 1.34

#In terms of Indian Accounting Standard 33 Eamings per Share, if the number of ordinary shares outslanding Increases as a result of share split, the calouation of basic and diluted earnings per
share for all periods presented shall be acjusted retrospectively. The calculation of basic and diluted EPS has been considered considering the impact of share split as slated above
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As at
31 March 2021

As atl
31 March 2020

40

{a)

()

&

{d)

(e}

41

information relating to Micro and Small and Medium Enterprises (MSMEs})

the principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier al the and of each reporting period;

Principat 20 0.95
Interest 0.4z 0.05
the amount of interest paid by the buyer in termns of section 1§ of the Micre, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, - -

2006, along with [he amounls of the payment mads to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each reporfing period;

Principal - -
Interest . B -
the amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid but beyond the -

appointed dale during the year} but without adding the interest specified under the Micro, Smali and Medium Enterprises

Development Act, 2006; .

the amount of inlerest accrued and remaining unpaid al the end of each reporting peried; and - -

the amouit of further interest remaining due and payable even in e succeeding periods, unfit such date when the interest - -
dues above are actually pald lo the small enterpise, for lhe purpose of disallowance of a deductible expendilure under section

23 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006,

As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Contingent Liabilities (net of provision)
{a) Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debt (refer 'c’ below) - .02
(Dispuled Tax and Duty for which the Company has preferred appeals before appropriate authorities)
Demand for Land Tax 0.37 8.37
Demand fer Entertainment Tax 0.81 0.81
Demand for Service Tax 4.38 4.38
Demand for Property Tax (refer 'd ' below &lsc) 131.89 110.78
(b}  Guarantees (refer 'c’ below}
Bank Guarantees Given to Customs and Gther Aulhorities .44 0.44
Corporale Guarantee given by the Company to subsidiary lowards vehicle foan . 0.38 0.38
(c) Inrespect of the contingent liabililies mentioned in Nole (a) above, peading resolutior: of the respective proceedings, it is not practicabie for the Company lo estimate the timings of cash
outfiows, if any. |n respect of matters mentioned i Note (B) above, the cash outflows, if any, cauld generally oceur during the validily period of the respective guarantees. The Company
does not expect any reimbursaments in respect of the above contingent liabilities.

(d)(i)y  During earler years, Company had acquired, a parcet of fand from the Kolkata Municipal Corporation (KMC) through a bidding process, the initially proposed annual valuation for
determination of property fax was reduced by fhe relevant Hearing Officer of KMC based on represenlation made by the Company. Thereafter, the Municipal Commissioner of KMC had
cancelled such lower annual valuation and reinstated the inisally proposed annual valuation which was determined ased on bid price paid by the Company. The Gompany had challenged
Ihe said order of the MC before the Hor'ble High Court at Calcalta. The Hon'ble High Court had vide order dated 13th Oclober, 2015 set aside the decision of the Municipal Commissioner
of KMC on grounds that relevant procedures as prescribed under the Kolkata Municipal Corporation Act, 1980 have not been followed for such higher valuation. Molwithstanding the said
order, the Kolkata Municipal Corporation had continued lo raise property tax demands based on such higher valuation. Aggrieved by such derand, the Company had filed a petition before
the same High Ceurt under the provisions of Aricle 226 of the Conslilution of india again challenging the unilaleral order passed by the MC or: various grounds including annual valuation of
comparable land parcels in the immediate vicinity that are much lower than the valualion as per lhe order of the MC. The Hen'ble High Court at Caleutta had found a slrong prima facic case
to pass an interim order to slay ihe aforesaid order of the MC Hll further orders and had directed the Company to continue lo pay propesty tax based on the erder of the Hearing Officer, as
aforesaid which will be adjusted against new bills, if any. The Cempany has been complying with the said order and charging off property tax so paid.

Notwithslanding the aforesaid order, the KMC has continued to saise property tax demands in accordance with the order of the MC. Such additionai demand raised on the Company
aggregates INR 87.31 crores (31 March 2020: {NR 75.33 crores). Management believes thal il i passible thal the malter will ba decided in favour of the Colnpany which is supported by a
legat opinion obtained. Consequently, no further provision has been considered necessary in these fhancial stalernents in this regard.

{diiiy  The Company had paid an amount under protest of INR 6.6€ crores lo NDMC for the period 2009 to date on account of nolices and certain voluntary payments. Properly Tax demand by

(e)

()

New Delli Municipal Council (NDMC) for earlier years was inter alia contesled by lhe Company before the Hor'ble High Cour of Pelhi, The Hor'ble High Court had quashed the impugned
Order ef NDMC and sel aside with a direction to NDMC for fresh assessment. The Hon'ble Supreme Court decided the appeal in favour of the Compaay vide its judgement dated January
22, 2019 and confirmed the judgment of the Hon'ble High Ceurt The Hon'ble Supreme Court of India vide order dated January 22, 2019 in respect to appeal filed by the NDMC has upheld
the decision of the Hon'ble High Court. Thereafter, the Company filed representations before NDMC on September 11, 2019 claiming a sum of INR 5.34 crores, being the excess amaunt
pald under protest, NDMC further issued nolice w/s 72 and proposed o increase rateable value w.e.f April 1, 2018 and recentiy raised a bill daled December 30, 2019 claiming a sum of INR
35.46 crore upto the period ending March 31,2020. The NDMC has raise a bill daled Febrruary 25, 2021 claiming & sum of INR 44.58 Cr upte the periad pending March 31, 2021.

The Cormpany Is of the view (hat NDMC has not adhered lo the orders of Supreme Court and he demand raised for eadier years upto 2018 is not tepable. For 2018-19 and 2018-20, the
Company is of the view thal the assessable value considered for calculation of praperty tax is high and accordingly revised rate is nol acceptable keeping in view olher properties in ihe
vicinity and i same industry.The Company fs conternplating to file a Civil wiit petition before the High Court seeking various refiefs in accordance wAth faw. Based on above, managermnent
helieves thal there will be nio adverse impacl on the Company in this regard. The status is same as on 31.03.2021

The Company had received a demand during the year 2012-13 amounting lo INR 5.41 Crores (31 March 2019; 5.41 crores) from Land & Devefopment Office (EDO), Minisiry of Urban
Development, Govemment of India, to regularise the alleged breaches relaling to the property of New Defhi, This was the first ime thal the Gompany had received such demand letter
despite regular! periodic inspection of the said property carried out by appropriate authority, Based on the communication received from LDO, the demand had been raised with
retrospeciive effect from 1885. The Company has dispuled the alleged claim and the matter is pending before 1.DO which 1s supporied by a legal opinion oblained by the Company.
Management believes that, the alleged cemand is guestionable, arbitrary and nol tenable and is likely to be settled in favour of the Company. Pending such reassessment, liability in this
ragard has not been recognised based en managemenl's best estimate.

Pursuant to a lease deed daled August 8, 2007, executed by and between the Jaipur Development Authority ("JDA”) and the Company, the JDA granted leagehold rights in favour of the
Company. The JOA has, from time to time, sent letiers/notices directing the Company to clear its dues of annuat lease rent for the period starling from ihe year 2008 cnwards. The JDA last
issued a nofice to lhe Company on December 12, 2019 under Sections 256 and 257 of the Rajasthan Land Revenue Acl, 1956, raising a demand for outstanding dues of annuat rent
aggregating up to INR 2.2 crores, coupled with interest payable amounting to approximately INR 1,78 crores. The matter is currently outstanding. Management befieves that there wili be
no adverse impact an the Company in this regard and therefore no liability in this regard has been recognised in Inese financial statements based on management’s best eslimate.

There are income tax cases outstanding from AY 2011-12 1o AY 2017-18 with respect to various matlers like interest capitalisation, 14A disallowance, amortisation of tand, TDS elc. and
pending at various forurms. The cases for some of the years (AY 2012-13 etc. ) have been decided in favour of the Company wherein no further appea! has been filed by lhe depariment,
The managernent belleves that since the nature of disallowances is similar in mest of the assessment years, lhe chances of liabilily devolving on the Company are less likely. Accordingly,
no provision has been considered necassary in these financial statements.
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Year ended
31 March 2021

Year ended
31 March 2020

42

43

(@)

{b)

{e}

0}

{n

(v}

V)

Commitments
(a) Capilal Commilments

Estimated amount of contracls remaining to be executed on capilél account and net provided for

{&) Clher Commitments
Estimated amount of exporl obligation

(The: Company has imporled Capilat Goods under ths Expert Prometion Capilal Goods Scheme, of the Governmenl of India, at concessional

rates of duly ont an undertaking (o fulfill the quantified export).

Employse Benefits
Post employment benefit - defined contribution plan
Amount recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss

contribution towards Provident Fund and other fund

Leave Obligations - defined benafit plan

67 656

214.33

434

71.79

21433

5.34

The GCompany has a scheme of encashment of leave or leave wilh pay subject to certain rules. The employees are enlitled to accumulale leave subject to certain timits, for future encashment. The
liabilily is determined on the basis of actuarial valuation using Projected Unit Credit Melhod of unutilized on leave enfifements on balance shaet date. The scheme is unfunded.

Gratuity - defined benefit plan

The Company has a post employment defined benefit scheme i the form of gratuily. Under the schems, employees are entitled to gratulty benefits based on fifteen days salary (basic plus dearness
allowance) for each completed year of service, The aforesaid benefit aceruas on completion of five years of service. The Company's obligation towards such gralily benefits are determ ined on the
basis of actuarial valuation using Projected Unit Credit method of lhe Company’s period end obligation under the scheme. Differenice between the Company's obligation so determined and year end

value of the assets of the related gralully fund is recognised as charge for the period.

The trustees of the Gratuity Fund has entrusted the administration of the fund to HDFC Standard Life Insurance Co. LIid.

The follewing Table sets forth the parliculars in respecl of the aforesaid Cratuity fund of the Company as al 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020.

Obligation as at 1 April 2019

Cbiigation as at 1 October 2019 for flurys

Curert Service cost

Interest cestinceme

Total amount recagnised in Statement of Profit and Loss
Remeasurements {gains)fiosses recognised in Other Comprehensive income
- Changs In Financial assurmptions

- Experience Variance {i.e Actual Experiznce vs assumptions)

- Return on plan asset, Excluding ameunt recognised in net interest expense
Total amount recognised in Other Comprehensive Income

Contributions by employer

Benefits paid

Obligation as at 31 March 2020

Obligation as at 1 April 2020

Current Service coslt

Interest costincome .

Total ameunt recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss
Remeasuremenls {gains)/losses recognised in Other Comprehensive Income
- Change in Financial assumptions

- Experience Variance (l.e Actual Experience vs assumptions)

- Return on plan assel, Excluding amount rezognised in net interes! expense
Total amount recognised in Other Comprehensive Inseme

Coniributions by employer

Benefils paid

Obligation as at 31 March 2021

Present value

Fair vaiue of plan

Net Amount

of obligation assets
11.08 3.42 7.66
0,33 033
1.32 - 1.32
.70 0,20 0.50
2.02 0.20 1.82
0.87 - 0.67
0.80 - 0.80
- {021 021
1.67 {0.21) 1.88
(0.43) 0.4 (0.54)
{(1.01) (.58} (0.03)
13,68 2.54 11,12
13.68 2.54 1112
1.13 0.01 1.12
0.92 .17 .76
2.05 018 1,88
(0.23) - 0.23)
(£.23) - (1.23)
- {0.34) 034
11.48) {0.34) {1.12)
- 0.35 {0.35)
0.77) (0.57) {0.10)
13.48 2.06 11.42

The sxpected return on plan assats is determined after laking into consideration composition of plan assels held, historical results of return on plant assels, Company's policies for plant asset

management and other relevant factors.

The net liability disclosed above relates to the aforesaid Gratuily Plan {Funded) is as foliows:

Reconciliation of the Present Value of the Defined Benefit Obligation and the Fair

Value of Plan Assets:

Present Value of funded obligation at the end of the peried
Fair Value of Plan Assets at the end of the period

Met Liability recognised in the Balance Sheet

Principal Actuarial Assumption Used:

Discount Rales
Expected Salary increase rates #
inflation Rate

Mortality table

# The estimale of fulure salary increases

As at
31 March 2021

As al
31 March 2020

13.48 13.66
2.08 2.54
11.42 11,12

As at
31 March 2021

As at
31 March 2020

6.68% - 5.68%
5.00%
5.00%

1AL MIALM{OB-08)
Ultimate

6.68% - 6.69%
5.00%
5.00%

IALMIALMIOG-08)
Ultimate
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vy

vy

)

The net [iability disclosed above refates to the aforesaid Gratuity Plan (Fuaded) is as follows:
Insurer managed funds 100% 100%

The major categorias of plan assets as a percentage of the fair value of total plan assets are as follows!
Fund with RDFC Standard Life 2.06 2.54

Maturity Profile of Defined Benefit Obligation
The contribution expected to be made by the Cotapany for the period ehded 31 March, 2022 is INR 10.56 crores.

The expected maturity anafysis of undiscounted gratuity penefit is as follows:

1 Year 2to 5 Year 6to 10 Year > 10 Year Total
As at 31 March 2021
Defined benefit obligation 472 4.00 1.06 12.09 24.87
As at 31 March 2020
Defined benefit obligation 4.04 4.06 4.81 12.67 25.58

Sensitivity Analysis

The foilowing tatle present a sensitivity analysis to one of the relevant acluarial assumption, holding olher assumptions constant, showing how the defined benefit ehiigation would have been affected
by changes in the relevant actuarfal assumpticns that were reasonably possible at the reporting date.

As at 31 March 2021 As at 31 March 2020
Increase Decrease increase [Racrease
Discount Rate {-+ 0.5%) 13.01 13.86 13.21 14.15
% Change Compared fo base dus 1o sensitivily -4.40%) 4.78% -2.76% 301%
Salery Growth Rale {-/+ 0.5%} 13.87 13.00 1415 13.20
% Change Cempared io base due lo sensilivily 4,83% -A.48%| 3.03% -2.80%
Allrition Rate{-/+ 10%) 13.42 13.42 1366 13.66
%% Ghange Compared to base due to sensitivity -0.02% 0.02% -0.01%! 0.01%
Morlafity Rate(-f+ 10%} 13.42 13.42 13.66 13.66
% Change Compared lo base dus lo sensitivity 0.03%| -0.03% 0.02%)| -0,02%;

The above sensitivity analyses are based on a change i an assumption while holding alt olher assumptions constant. In practice, this is unlikely to cccur, and changes in seme of the assumptions may
be comelated. When calculaling the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation lo significant actuarial assumptions the same msthod (present valus of the defined benefit obligation calculated wilh the
projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period) has been applied as when caiculating the defined benefit lability recognised in the bafance sheet.

The methods and types of assumplions used in preparing the sensitivily analysis did not change compared lo the prior paried.

Risk associates with plan provisions
Valuations are performed on centain basic set of pre-delermined assumptions and other regulatory framework which may vary overime. Thus, the Company is exposed to various risks in providing the

above gratully benefit, lne most sigrificant of which are as follows:

Interest Rata risk © The plan exposes the Company to lhe risk of fail in interest rates. A fall in interest rates will result in an increase in the ultimate cost of providing the above benefit and wilk thus resull
In an increase in fhe value of the liability (=3 shown in financial statements).

Liquidity Risk : This is the risk that the Company is not able to meet the short term gratuity pay-outs. This may arise due to non availability of sufficient cash/cash equivalents to meet the liabitities.

Salary Escalation Risk : The present value of the defined benefit plan is calculated with the assumption of salary increase rate of plan participanis in fulure. Deviation in the rate of increase of salary in
future for plan participants from the rate of increase in salary used to delermine the present value of obligation will have a bearing on the plar's liability.

Demographic Risk : The Company has used certain mortality and altriion assumptions in valuation of the liability. The Company is exposed to the fisk of actual experience turning out to be worse
compared to the assumplion.

Regulatory Risk : Gratuity benefit is paid in accordance with the requirements of the Payment of Gratuily Act, 1972 (as amended from time to time). Thera is a risk of changs in regulations requiring
higher graluily payouts e.g. Increase in the maximum fimit on graluity of INR 20,00,000 and upward revision of maximunm gratuty fimit wil resuit In gratuily plan abligation.
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44 Related Party Disclosures

Related party disclosures pursuant to lnd AS 24

)
(a}

)

Related Parties
Subsidiary (Control relationship exists)

Apesjay Charter Privale Bimited
Apesjay Hotels & Restaurants Private Limiled
Apesjay Norlh West Hotels Private Limited

Key Management Personnel
Mr. Vijay Dewan

Ms. Priya Patd

Mr. Karan Paul

Mr. Atul Khesla

Me. Ashoke Ghosh

Mr. Debanjan Mandal

Mr. Suresh Kumar

Ms Ragini Chopra

Ms Suneela Reddy

Ms Shalini Keshan

Ms, Sujata Guin *

Mr. Sujest iKumar Singh *
Mr. Rajesh Kumar Singh *
Mr. Vikas Ahluwalia &

Mr. Rohit Arora *

Ms. Apargjita Brahma »
Mr. Gurpreet Singh #

s. Ruchika tehta *

Wr. Sharad Dewan *

Wr. Yazad Marfatia *

Mr. Ajit Singh Garcha *

~Wilh effect from 21 December 2018

(CH

(i)

Other

Flurys Swiss Confectionary Private Limited

Particulars of Transactions with Related Parties

A} Subsidiary Company (Apeefjay Charter Private Limited)

- Hiring Charges

B} Investing Parly in respect of which the Company is an Associate

Flurys Swiss Confectionary Private Limiled
- Purchase of Confectionery etc.
- Sale of Services

- Purchase Consideration for sale of business {refer note 52)
- Reimbursement of Expenses

C) Subsidiary Company {Apeejay Hotels & Restaurants Private Ltd}

- Loan given

- Loan repaid

- Interest Incoms

- Sale of goods

D} Key management personnel of the Company

- Manageriat Remungration
Mr. Vijay Dewan
Dirgctor's Remuneration
Shorl-ternm employment benelits
Postemploymenl benefis
Ms, Priya Paul
Short-ierm employment benefits
Mr. Karan Paul
Sale of Services
- Rooms
- Foods & Beverage
- Ligour
- Cther
Mangement Consullancy Service
Mr.Atul Khosla
Shor-lerm employment benefits
Pest-employment benefils

Ms. Shalini Keshan
Short-term employment benefils
Fost-employment benefis

Ms. Sujata Guin

Short-term employment benefits
Post-employment benefits

Mr. Surjest Kumar Singh
Short-term employment benefits
Post-employment benefits

Relationship

Managing Director

Chairperson & Whole Time Director
Non-executive Director

Chief Financial Qfficer (CFQ)
Non-executive Director

Mon-executive Director

Indepandent Director

Independent Director

Independent Director

Company Secrelary

Vice President - Human Rasources
Vice Presfdent - Projects and Engineering
Director - Operations and Development
General Manager and Natioral Head
Asea General Manager

Corporate Director - Finance
Corporate Director - Finance

Corparate Direclor - Communications and Public Relations
Regional Director - Food Production
Area Director & Head of Sales

Area General Manager

Relationship

Invesling Party in respect of which the Company is an Associate

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

0.01 0.05
_ 0.20
- 0.01
R 66.27
- 0,26
0.30 1.91
120 0.52
;.28 0.28
0.61 0,05
247 314
0.34 0.35
1.18 0.80
- 0.19
- 0.18
- 021
- 0.08
182 0.68
0.78 1.39
0.15 0.08
013 019
8.01 0.02
0.85 0.29
.06 Q.07
018 0.28
0.01 2.07
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Mr. Rajash Kumar Singh

Short-term employment benefits 0.28 0142

Post-employment benefils 8.09 0,06
Mr. Vikas Ahluwalia

Short-term employment benefits 0.23 0.4

Post-employment benefits 004 0.02
Mr. Rohit Arora

Shott-lerm employment benefits 0.49 0.21

Post-employment benefis 0.08 . 004
Ms. Aparajita Brahma

Short-term employment benefits 0.44 0.23

Paosl-employment benefits a.02 0.04
Mr. Gurpreet Singh

Short-term employment benefits 0,41 013

Posi-employment bensfits 005 .03
Ms. Ruchika Mehta

Short-term employment benefits 0.36 018

Post-employmient berefits 0.03 0.04
Mr. Sharad Dewan

Shorl-lerm employment benefits 0.39 0.22

Posl-employment benelils 0,03 0.03
Mr. Yazad Marfatia

Shorl-term emptoyment bensfits 022 a.10

Post-employment henefits 0.1 0.04
Mr. Ajit Singh Garcha

Short-term employment benefits 0.42 0.15

Post-employment benefits 0.36 0.01
- Sitting Fees

Ms. Priya Paul - *

Mr. Karan Paul .06 *

M. Vijay Dewan - *

Mr. Ashoke Ghosh - o.M

Mr. Suresh Kumar 0.80 *

Ms Suneeta Reddy 0.00 *

s Ragini Chopra 0.00 -

Mr. Debanjan Mandai 0.00 *

(i) Balances Cuistanding as at the end
As at As ai
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

A) Subsidiary Company
- Apesjay Charter Private Uimited

Investments 0.01 001

- Apesjay Hotefs & Reslaurants Private Limited
Invesiments 2 0.

Loan Given 2.48 3.38

Inlerest Accured 0.28 0.20

Corporate Guarantes 0.38 0,38

Rent & Other Charges Recoverable 0.12 0,05
- Apesjay [North West Hotels Private Limited

Investments 0.01 -

B} investing Party In respect of which the Company is an Associate
- Flurys Swiss Confeclionary Private Limited
Purchase Consideration Payable {Refer note 52} 0.27 26.27

B) Key Managamnent personnel
Mr. Karan Paul

Payable toward Management Censullancy charges 038 0.68
Ms. Priva Paul
Payable toward Commission charges 1.18 .60

* Below rounding off norms
MNoter The post employment benefits disclosed above are aslimated basis and actuat banefits may differ since lhe actuarial valualion is carmfed out for the Company as a whole and not individually.

45 Lease Comiitments
{a} Company as a lesses

The Company as a lessee has entered Into various {ease conlracls, which includes lease of land, office space, club, restaurant and guest house. Before the adoption of Ind AS 116, the Cempany
classified each of ils leases (as lessee) at he inception date as either a finance tease or an eperating lease.

The Company also has certain feases of guest house with \ease terms of 42 monihs or less. The Company appligs the ‘short-lem: Tease’ recognition exemplions for these leases.

1G] Sel oul helow are the carrying amounts of lease tabilities {included under int#rest bearing loans and borrowings) and movesent during the year :
" As at As at
Partioulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Balance as at beginning 12.48 1.24
Addition on acquisition of Flury {refer nole 52) - 4.53
Addition during (he year 410 7.54
Finance cost during the pedod (refer note-36) 1,34 0.74
Deletion during the pericd {0.30) {0.61)
Paymenl made during the period (2.16} {1.66}
Balance as atend 1548 1738
Current 211 1.47
Mon current 13.35 11.0%
16.48 12.48
a) There are no restrictions or covenants imposed by leases. H K
i

[

b) Refer rote 38 for renlal expense recerded for short-term leases and fow value leases. Ew ey i XA
N iiY 35
¢} There are no amount payable lowards varizble lease expense recognised for the year ei{&!’éd 3% hhéfch 2021

d) The maturity analysis of lease liabifities are disclosed in note 50. 44
€) There are no lease which have not yet commenced Lo which lessee is committed (if any) <, ¢

g b
e,

IS
and 31°M_arch 2020
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47

48

{ii} The following are the amounts recognised in profit or loss:
As at As at

Particulars 31 Mareh 2024 1 March 2020
Depreciation expense of righl-to-use assets (refer note -37) 4.37 345
interesl expense on leass llabilittes (refer note - 38) 1.34 0.74
Expense relaling to shori-lenn leases {included in rent expense) (refer nole - 38) ' 1.67 1.89
Total amount recognisad in profit or [oss for Lhe year 7.38 .08

{iif} The Company's total cash outflow for leases for the pericd endad 31 March 2021 is INR 2,16 crores.

(iv} The iolal sub-lease rental recognized as an income during the period ended 31 March 2021 amounts to INR Wil (31 March 2020 INR 0.09 crores) which has been recognized in the slalement of

Profit & Less. The Company has given a certain portion of a building in Badarpur, New Dalhi under cancellable operaling Tease. Tenure of such lease extends to 3 years with an aption for renewal
for twe furiher tenure of three years each,

(v} Property plant and equipment pladged as sacurily; refer note 22 & 27 for information of praparty plant and equipment pledged as a security for borrowing by Gompany. The tils deeds of
immovabla property inciuded In right of use assels amounting to Rs. 1638 crores (net block) has been pledged wilh tranks against borrewing takan by ihe company.

{b) Cempany as a lessor

{f The Company has given certain portion of a buikding ir: Hyderabad under cancellable operaling leass. Tenurg of such lease extends Lo 25 years wilh an option to renaw it for a furlher period of 25
years, This iease agreement inter-alia includes escalalion ¢lauses to compensate for inflation, option for renswals alc. Lease income (rental and service charges) aggregating INR 1.53 Crores (31
tarch 2020; IMR 1.81 ¢rores) has been recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss in keeping wilh lease arrangsiments,

{#} The Company has entered into cancellable operaiing leases wherein some area of the properlies have been leased for shops, towers, etc. Tenure of such leases is generafly cne year with an
option for renewel. Lease income aggregating INR 1.60 Crores {31 March 2020 1 INR 1.14 Crores} has been recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss in keeping with lease arangements.

The Company is mafnly engaged in the single segment business of hoteliering in india. Hence, no separala gecgraphical disaggregation done.

TSR Expenditure
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2621 31 March 2020
fa) Gross amount reguired to be spent by the Company during the year 0.18 0.17
by Amount spent in Cash during the year on:
Construction/acquisilion of any asset . - -

Promoting art and arists : - 0.05
Sostal development and charitable aclivities 0.07 .-
(c) Amount spert during the year ending on 31 March 2021:
[Particulars In cash] Yet to be paid in Cash Tatal

éi) Construction/acquisition of any asset - _ B
%ii! On purposes other than (i) above 0.07 - 0.67

(d} Details related to spent / unspent obligations during the year ending on 31 March 2024
Particulars In cash Yet to be paid In Cash Total
i} __For ongoing project * .12 - 0.12
i} _On purposes other than (i} above - - -

{e) Amount spent duiing the vear epding on 31 March 2020;
Particulars in cash Yat to be paid in Cash Total
) Conslructionfacquisition of any assel - - -

i} On purposes other than (i) above 0.5 ) - 0.05

Distails related to spent / unspent obligations during the year ending on 31 March 2071
Opening balance] Amount required to he spent during the year] Amount spent during the year| Closing balance
-1 0.18 | 0.18] 0.01

“The company has entered into an MOU wAth the inistry of Tourism, Govt of India, Ministry of Custure, Govt. of india and Archaelogical Survey of india on September 16, 2018 for adopting Jantar Mantar, New Delhi
under "Adopt a Herltage” schema. The Company has deposited INR 812 crin the unspent CSR account and wil ulfise the amount over the nexi 3 years.

Capital Management

For the purposes of the Company's capital management, capltal includes issued capital, all olher equity reserves and fong term bomowed capilal less reported cash and cash equivalenls.

The primary objective of the Company’s capilal management is to Tmaintain an efficient capital struclure to reduce the cost of capital, support the corporate strategy and to maximise sharsholdsr's valus.,

The Gompany's policy is to horrow primarily threugh banks to maintain sufficient liquidity. These borrowings. together wilth cash generaled from operations are ulilised for operations of the Company including periodic
capilal projects undertaken for the company's exisling projects . The Company manitors capital on the basis of cost of capital. The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments In light of changes
in economic conditions. The Company menitors capital using a gearing ratio, which 1s net debt divided by total capilal plus nst debt. The Company inctudes within net debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings, less
cash and cash equivalents.

The foliowing lable summariss lhe capital of the Gompany:

As ai As at

Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Mon-current Borowings {including current maturities) 541.10 49117
Currenl Borowings 51.22 48.45
Less: Cash and cash equivalents {6.76) (8.76)
TOTAL BORROWING (NET) 585.56 £29.86
Total equily 536.51 610,37
TOTAL GAPSTAL (EQUSTY+ NET DEBT) 112207 1,140.23
Gearing ratic 52.19% 48.47%

No changes were mads Lo the objeclives, policies or processes for managing capital during the year ended 31 March 2021 and year ended 31 March 2020.
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4% Fair Value Meastirements

{i} Financial fnstrunients by catagory

As at 31 March 2021 As at 31 March 2020
FVTPL* FVTOCI Amoriised Cost Total FVIPL* FvTOCI Amortised Cost Total

Financial Assels

Investments

- Lanity Insliumends 0.02 - 0.03 0.05 0.02 - 002 0.04

Trade receivables - . 17.80 17.90 - - 20.46 2048

Loans ) - - 11.38 11.38 - - 2511 25.11

Cash and cash equivalent - - 8.76 6.75 - - .76 9.76

Qther bank balances - - 0.24 o0.21 - - 0.19 018

Becurity-deposits - - 5.03 .03 - - 9.89 9,89

Other financial assefs - - i1.26 1128 - - 1081 10.91
Total 0,02 - 56.57 56.5¢ 0.02 - 76.34 76.36
Financial Liabilities

Bartovdngs - - 519.82 519.82 - - 486.75 486.75

Curent malurities of long-lerm debi - - 72.50 72.50 - - 52.87 52,87

interest aconaed - - 6.38 0,38 - - 0.82 0.82

Derlvalive Financial Liabilities - - - - - - - -

Trade payables - - 44.34 44.34 - - 4428 44.28

Other financial liabilily - - 18.45 18.45 - - 4592 45.92
Total - - 655.49 6E5.43 - - 630.64 630.64

** There are no Mnancial assels or fnancial liabililies routed threugh FYOCL.
Eguily instruments included wilhin the FYTPL category are measured at fair vatue will all changes recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss,

{ii) Fair Value

The falr values of Mantial assets and liabtities are included at the amount that would be received lo sell an assel or paid lo transier a liability in an orderly transaction behveen market participanls at lhe measuremenl date. Methods and assumptions
used fo estimate the fair values are cansistent In all the periods. The falleving metheds and assumptions were used to estimate the [air values.

The management assessed ihat falr valies, of lrade raceivables, loans , eash and cash equivalents, other bank balances. secuiily deposils, other financial assels , current borrovings, rade payables and other financial liabllilies , approximate ta lheit
carying amounts largely due o Lhe short-lerm maturities of these instruments. Furlher, managemenl alst assessed the carrying amaount of ceraln non-current financial liabllittes and non-currenl barrowings al finating interesl rates which are a reasonable
appteximation of their fair values and the difference between the carrying amounts and fair values is nol expected to be significant.

{iii) Fair value of financial assets and liabililies measured at amortised cost

The carrying amount of financlel assets and financial liabilifes measured at amortised cost i the financlal slalsmenls are a reasonable approximation of Lheir fair values since the Gempany does not anficipale that the carnrying amaunt weuld be

signilicantly different from the values that weuld eventually be received or setfled.

fPariiculars As at 31 March 2621 As at 31 March 2020
Camrying Valus Fafr Value Carrying Vatue Fair Value

Financial Assets

Trade receivables 17.99 17.80 2046 20.46
Loans 11.36 1138 2511 2541
Cash and cash eqguivalent 876 8.76 9.768 9.76
Cther bank balances 021 0.24 0.19 0.18
Security depaosits 9.03 .03 9.89 9.89
QOlher financial assets 11.26 1126 10.81 10.81
Total financial Assels 55.54 56.54 76.32 76.22

Financlal Liabililies

Bomowings 518.82 519.82 486.75 486.75
Current matuiites of long-term debt 72.50 72.50 52.87 52.87
Interest accrued 0.38 0.38.| 0.82 0.82
Trade payables 44 34 4434 44.28 4428
Olher financial liabiliies 18.45 18.45 46.92 45.92
Totat financial Liabilities 655.49 655.49 £30.65 3064

{iv) Fair value hisrarchy

This section explafns the judgements and estimates made In determining the fair values of the financial nsbuments that are (2} recognised and measured at falr value and (b) measured al amorfised cost and for which fait valiues ace disclosed in the

As at 31 March 2021 As at 31 March 2020
Levet $ Level 2 Levei 3 Total Level 1 Levei2 teveld Total
Financial Assels
Investments
- Eguily - - 0.02 0.02 - - 0.02 9.02
Totat - - 0.02 0.02 - - 0,02 0.02

Levet 1: Level { hierarchy includes financial instruments meastred using quoted prices. This includes lsted equity Instruments and muluz! funds that have net asset value as stated by the issuers in the published slatements. The [sir value of all equity
instruments which are Uaded in e stock exchanges is valued using the closing price as at the reporting peried.

Level 2: The fair valee of financial Instruments \hal are not traded in an active matket {for example, over-the counter derivatives) is defepmined using valuation techniques which maximize the tse of observatle market data and rely as litlle a5 possible
on enlity specilic esimates. I afl significant inputs required to fair value an Instrement are observable, the instrument is included in Level 2.

Level 3: I one or mote of Lhe significant inputs is not based on observable markel dala, the instrunient is included in fevel 3. This [s the case for unllsted equily securilies insluded in fevel 3.

The Company's paliey s ta recognise transfers into and transfers out of fair value hisrarchy fevels as al the end of Lhe reporting period. There are no transfers betveen level 1, fev el 2 o¢ level 3 fair value measurements during the year ended 3t March
2021 and year endad 31 March 2620,

Some of the Gompany's financiaf assets are carrisd at falt value for which Level 3 inpuls have heen used,
Valuation inpuis and relationship to fair value and Valualien procass @

As per the Company poficles, whenever any investiment is made by the company in equity securilies, the same Ts made efther with some sfrategle objective or as a part of conlractual arrangemenl.

Vehiation lechnlque used to determine fair value include

Investment in unyueled equity shares in Graen Infra Wind Farms Limited and Green Infra Wind Generation Limited amounting to INR 0.82 Crores {31 March 2020: INR 0.02 Crores) are made pursuant to the condract for procuring electriclly supply at the
hotels units. Investment Tn safd compantes is nol vsually traded in market. Considering the terms of the eleclicily supply contract and best Information available in the market, cost of Investment Is considered as falr value of the investments.

Other investments are nat materfal in nature.
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50 Financtal Risk Management

The Company's principal financlal lizbilties comprise of borrowings, Irade and other payables and other financial Fabilities. The main purpose of these financial liabildes is lo finance and supporl the operations of the
Company. The Gumpany's principal finanelal assels includs trads and ofher recelvables, pans, fnvestments and cash & cash equivalents that derive direclly from its operatiens,

The Company's business aclivilies are exposed [o a veariely of risks including liguidily Ask, credit risk and market sk, The Company szeks to minimize potential adverse effecs of these risks by managing them through a
structured process of idenlification, assessment and priarifizallon of hsks foltowed by coordinaled efiorls 1o monitor, minknize and miligate Ihe impacl of such risks on its financial performance and capital. For Whis purpose, the
Company has faid comprehensive fisk assessment and minimization/mitigation procedures and are reviewed by (e management Irom Ume to Ume. These procedures are reviewed lo ensure thal executive management
conirols risks by way of properly defined framework. The Gompany does not enter inta derivative financlal instruments for speculative purposes.

(A) Credit Risk

Credit risk refets 16 sk of linancial loss Lo the Company if customess or counterparties fail o meel thelr contractual obligations. The Company Is exposed lo credit sk from iis operaling aclivities (mainly frade recelvables}

and from ils investing aclivitics (primarily depostt with banks).

Credil Risk Management
Provision for expected credit loss

As at 31 March 2021

Particulars Estimated gross| - Expested Carying Amount
carrying amount . "e,l of
impairment
at default Credit Loss provision
invesiments .02 - 0.02
Trade Receivables 30.25 12.35 17.90
Loans 23.63 3.22 2041
Cash & Cash equivalents 6.76 - 6.76
|Cther bank balance 0.21 - 0.21
Olher financial assels 12.59 1.33 11.28
7346 16,91 56.56
As at 31 March 2020
Farticuiars Estimated g76s5} Expecled Credit|Cazying Amount
carrylng amount et of
impairment
at default Loss provision
Investmeats 0.02 - 0.02
Trade Receivables 31.59 15.13 20.45
Loans 38,22 3.22 36.00
Cash & Cash equivalenls 98.78 - 9.76
Other bank balance 0.19 - 0.19
Other iaf assels 1224 133 10.91
52,02 15.68 7834

{a) Trade receivables

Frade receivables consis| of targe number of customess, spread across geagraphical areas. In order to mitigate the (isk of nancial loss from delauiters, e Company has an ongaing credit evaluation process In respect of
customers who are aflowed credil period. In respect of walk-in customers the company doss not allow any credit perod and thereforg, is not exposed to any credit risk.
I general, It is presumed Lhat credit risk has significantly increased since initfal recognition if the paymenls are more than 80 days past due. The Company has a policy to provide for specific receivables which are overdue far
2 period over 180 days. On gccount of adoplion of Ind AS 109, lhe Campany also uses expecied credi loss model 1o assess the impalrment Jess of reversal thereof.

Reguncilialion of allowance for credit Impaired — Trade receivables

Particulars

Loss allowance at the beginning
Change in allowance during the poriod
| oss sllowance at the end

i Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2029
11.13 8.02
1.22 341
12.35 11.13

() Deposits and financial assets (Other than trade receivablesi

The Gompany mainlains exposure in Cash and cash equivalents and (erm deposits with banks. Investments of suiplus are made within asslgned credit limits with approved counterparties who meet the threshald
requirements with respect to ralings, linancial strengld, credil spreads ete. Counlerparty cradit limils are sel to minimize concentratlon risk and are reviswed on a periadic basis.

Reconclialion of sllowance for credil impalred — Other fingnglal assels

Paiticulars

Loss allowance af the beginning
Allowance lor expected credit loss(nel)
iLoss allowance al the end

Year ended

31 March 2021 31 March 2020
133 1.33
1.33 1.33

Recaoncilialion of allewance for credit impaired - Loans

Particulars

Pertod ended

31 March 2021

21 March 2020

Loss allowance at the beginning
Abloveance for expecled credit lossinel)

Loss allowance at the end

276
048
3.22

230
0.48
276

{B) Liguidity Risk

Liquldity risk implles lhat the Company may nol be abls te meel s obligations assoecialed with its financial liabilities. The Company manages iis liguidity risk on (he basis of the business plan hal ensures lhal the fnds
required for financing the business operations and meeting financial liablliies are availabla fn a tiely manner and in he currency required at optimal cosls. The Management regularly monitors rolling farecasts of the
Company's fiquidity posllian lo ensure il has sufiiclent cash on an ongoing basls to meel operational fund requiremenis, )

Additienally, the Gampany has committed fund and nen-fund based credit Ines fram barks wihich may he dravn anyime based on Company’s fund regquirements. The Company malntalns a eautizus liquidity strategy with

positive cash balance and undravin bank Iines Ihroughout tha period

The follovlng are the remaining conlractual maturitles of fnanciat abilities zl the reporting dale, The amounis tepresented below includes contractual interest payments.

Contractual maturity of financial liabitity
31 March 2021

Borrovdigs {including cumrent maturities)*
Lease Lishifitles

Trade payable

Olher financlal Eabiftiss

3% March 2020
Borowings (ncluding currenl maturitlesy* |
Lease Liabilitios

Tiade payable

Other financial liabiities

Upto 1 year 1 year te § year tiore than 5 years Total

128.44 484,75 141.08 73227
3.02 12.08 12,89 2808
4434 - - 44,34
18.80 0.03 - 18.83
192,60 476.86 154,08 823.54
142.78 48125 13515 749.18
302 12.08 12.99 28.00
44.28 - - 44.28
48.71 0.03 - 46.74
236.79 493.36 RELAL) 868.29

“*Includes fulure inlerest payments
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{C) Market Risk
Markel risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flow of fnancial instruments may fuciuale because of changes in market condilions. Market risk broadly comprises three types of risks namely currency risk,

inlerest rate fisk and price risk {for equiy instruments). The above risks may affecl the Company's income and expenses and { or value of its investments. The Company's exposure 1o and management of lhese risks
are explained helow/:

(I} Foreign currency risk
The predominant currency of the Company's revenue and eperaling cash flows is Indian Rupees (INR). The Company’s reporied debl has an exposure o borowings neld in US dollars. Movenients in foreign exchange
rates can affect the Company's reporled profil, net assets,

(&) Foreign currency #isk exposure

INR Equivalent of USD

As at 31 March 2021|As at 21 March 2620
Foreign currency loan payable 24,85 37.58
Mef Exposure to Foreign Currency Risk 24.88 3r.58

{b} Sensitivity

A fluctuation Tn the exchangs rates of 5% with other conditions ramaining unchanged would have the following effect on Company's profit before 1axes for the year ended 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020

Impact on Profit before tax
- Year ended 31 Yaar ended 31
March 2021 Yarch 2020
USD Sensitivity
INRAISD - Increase by 5% * {1.24) {1.88)
INRAJSD - Decrease by 5% * 1.24 1.88

{i) Interast rate risk
The Company's exposure to risk of change Tn maskel interest rates refates primarily io its debt inleresl obfigations. The Company uses interest rale swaps lo achieve the company policy of maintaining its borewings at
fixed rate. }t's borrowings are at floating rates and its fulure cash flows will fuctuate because of changes in market inlerest rales, .

The Company's fixed rate borrowings are not subject to interest rate risk as defined in fnd AS 107, since neither lhe carrying amounl nor the cash flows will flucluate because of a change in market rate interest.

{a) Interast rate risk exposure
The exposure of the Company's bormowings fo interest ate changas at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

As at 31 March

202% As at 31 March 2020
Total barrowings {including current maturities)
Variable rate borrowings 577.68 510.08
Fixad rate borrowings 14.69 28,53
- 582,57 539.61

As al the end of lhe reporting peried, the Company had the following vasiable rate borrowings:

As at 31 March

2021 As at 31 March 2020
Varlable rale borrowings 577.68 510.08
Met exposure 1o cash flow interest rate risk 577.68 510.08

{b} Sensitivity

Impact on profit before tax

As at 31 March

2021 As at 31 March 2020
Interest rate sensitivity {Including interest on USD loan)
Interest Rales - Increase by 50 basis points (80 bps) * {2.79) (2.55)
Interest Rales - Decrease by 50 basis poinls (60 bps) * 278 . 2.55

* Holding 2|l other variable constant
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Assels piedyed as security

The camying amounls of certain categories of assels pledged as security fer current and non-current borrowings pursuant to the requirements of Ind AS 2, Ind AS 16, Ind AS 38 and Ind AS 107:

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2021 3 March 2020

Gurrent Assets

Inventories 9.56 i1.24
Olhers assets aB.14 77.48
Total current assets pladged as security {A) 65.70 88.72
Non-current assets

Property, planl and equipment { including ROU}Y 593.15 583.47
Capital Work-in-progress - 3.38
lrtangible assels 118 1.88
Total non-currents assefs pletged as security (B) ' 594.34 588.75
Total assets pledged as security (A+B) £60.04 677.47

Acquisition of Confestionary undertaking of Flurys Swiss Confectienery Private Limited (FSCPL) {Ind AS 103):

{A) Pursuant to the Business Transfer Agreement enlered between the Company and Flurys Swiss Confaclionery Private Limited (FSCPL} on December 18, 2019, the Company has acquired identified assels and
liabilites perlaining to the Confectionary undertaking of FSCPL under & slump sale agreement with effect from October 1, 2019 for a total consideration of INR 68.27 croras. The acquisifion of Cordectionary Business of
Flurys Swiss Confectionary Private Limited has been approved by the Board of Directors In Iheir board meeting held on September 27, 2018 and has been done as part of lhe Company’s expansion slrategy, and the
Company intends {0 expand from the existing offering of 39 oullets and increase the footprint of Flurys vathin Kolkala as well as expand in the Delhi NCR region and the matro domestic and internalionat airports.

(B)Fair Value of.the Consideration transferred:
Against the total enterprise value of INR 13.45 crores, the Company has taken over borrowings of INR 0.88 crores and working capital of INR 0.09 crores from FSCPL. Alter taking these liabilies into account and

-adjustments of goodwill and brand arising out of such acquisition amounting to INR 22.81 crores and INR 30 crores respeclively as also further explained in Point E below, the net effeclive purchase consideration of INR

86.27 crores will be discharged / paid as under:

10% of the purchase consideration to be paid on the dale of sighing of Business Transfer Agreement
15% of the purchase consideration to be paid on January 1, 2020

25% of the purchase consideration to be paid an Aprit 1, 2020

Balance payment by July 1, 2020

During the yaar, the Company has discharged purchase consideration lo FSCPL amounling to JNR 26.00 (PY INR 40 crores} crores resulling into outstanding purchase consideralion of INR 0.27 (INR 26.27 crores)
crofes as at March 31, 2021

{C}Acquired receivables:

As an the date of acquisition, gross contractual amount of the acquired Trade Receivables and Other Financial Assels was R 2.16 crores against which provision for expected credit loss amounting to INR 0.04 crores
has been considered. The fair value of lhe acquired recaivables which is equal lo the carrying value of INR 2.14 crores as on the date of acquisition is net off the management's best estimale of the contractual cash
flows that is not expecled to be collected {i.e. [NR 0.04 crores).

[D)The Fair Value of Identifiable assels acquired and liabilities assumed as on the actjuisltion date:

Particulars Amount
Properly, Plant and Equipment . 9.72]
Right of Use Assels 4.45]
Inlangible assels 0.20 )
Capital Work-In-Progress 0.21
Other Financial Assals (non-current) 1.04]
Other Mor-Current Assels 1.92
Inventories 1.80
Trade receivables .50
Cash and Cash equivalents .13
Cther Financial Assels 0.65]
Ciher Current Assets 0.50
Totat Assels 23.12
Mon-Current Borrowings 0.04
Lease Liabilities (Noa-curent} 3.69
Fravisions {non-cument) 0.33
Trade Payables 3.71
Lease Liabilties (Current) 0.84
Other financial liabifities 0.64
Other currertt Babilities 0.24
Provisicns (Curent) 017
Total Liabilities 0.66]
Tolal Fair Value of the Net Assels 13.46
{E)Amount recognised as goodwill and other intangible assets:

Particulars Amount

Fair value of consideralion lransferred 66.27

L ess: Fair value of the net assels acquired 13.46

Gaodwill and other intangible assets 52.81
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Goodwill and other intangible assels in the form of brand as compuled abeve have been calculaled on the basis of allseation of purchase consideration lo assets acquired and liabililies assumed by the Company based
on their respaclive fair values, as determined by an independent valuer. Accordingly, brand amounting fo INR 30.00 crores valued by an independent valuer has been recognised under the head “intangible Assets” and
such brand is being amortised in the books based on the useful life of 20 years as assessed by the management, Further, gooduwill of INR 22.81 crores has been recognised as at October 1, 2019 being the excess of the
aggregate of the purchase consideration aver the tair value of the net assefs {including brand and eslimated transaction cosl} acquired.

For the purpose of Inceme Tax Act, the Company Nas assessed the said ransaclion as a slump sale in the nature of succession and accordingly has not claimed depreciation on goodwili/ brand as tax deductible for the
current year.

Clualitative description of the factors Ihat make up the goodwill recognised such as expacted synergies from combining operations of the acquiree and the acquirer -ASPHL

{F) Actjuisition refated costs!

Liability has baen recognised for estimaled transaction cost in the nature of Acquisition refated cosls amounting to INR 0.12 crores for lhis acquisition, under the head Trade payables.

{5} Contingent liabllity recognised:
The Coempany has also recognised and acquired contingent liability ameunting to fis 8.02 crores in respect of excise demanded by Ceniral Excise Department relating lo claim of excise on Service charges on restaurant
bill for the year 2007,

(H) Financial Infermation of Revenue and Profit / Loss:
The amount of revanue and profit / loss of the acquiree since the acquisilion date which has been included in the Slatement of Profit and Loss for the year period 31 March 202¢ and the revenug and profit / loss of the
combined entity for the year then ended 1he acquisilion date for such business combinalions had been as of the beginning of such ¢eporting penod is disclosed below:

Particulars — Amount of the acquiree’s undertaking |Revenue Profit { {Loss)
From acquisilion date 15.57 {0.41}
£ram beginning of the reporting period 27.84 0.65

53 Shares Issue Expenses

“Op 31 Decerber 2019, the Gompany had filed Drafl Red Herring Prospectus ("DRHPT) {hereinalter called lhe 'Filing')and received SEBI's approval vide letter dated 08 March 2020. The Company had incurred expenses
in relalion Lo such filing amounting to INR 15.07 <rores il 31 harch 2021, Owing to the jockdowns due to pandemic, management had to postpene thalr plan for public listing and accordingly, the Company has charged
off such amount during the year and disclosed under the head “Exceptional ltems” i lhe statement of profit and loss since these tockdowns were outside lha control of the Company.”

54 The Govid-18 pandsmic has Jed to a sigrificant disnuption in the operalions of the company. The extended pan-India lockdown falowed by localised lockdown and contagion fears resuited in a sharp fall in the occupancy
Jevels. Due to the decline In revenues, lhe cempany incured losses in the current year. Furher, the company’s liguidity position s stretched owing lo a shamp demand cortraclion stemming from the Covid-19 pandemic.
As at Ihe March 31, 2021, the Cempany’s current liabililies have exceeded its current assels by Rs. 140.41 crores primartly on account of short-lerm boowings and curent maturities of long -term borrowings falling due
within 12 manths from the end of the financial year. The company has also defaulled in certain debt covanants. Alse, during the current year, lhe ¢redil rating of the company has been downgraded. These avenis!
conditions may cast significani doubt on the Company's abilily to continue as a going concarm.

The Company has made detailed assessment of its liquidity position in the light of Covid-19 and has decided to avail additional borrowings under Emergency Credit Line Guarantee Scheme (ECLGS) itroduced by
Government of India through Minislry of Finance on May 23, 2020 and further updaled from lime to time. Ti date, the Company has secured lender's approval for approximately 96% of required additional financing
{excluding the borrowings having covenanl failures) and is in discussion to secure remaining amount of additional financing required to fifll its long-term and working capiial requirements. The Company has also
underiaken significart cost contrel measures and all nor-essenlial capital expanditures have been deferred.

The Company's abilily to continue as going concern is dependent on assumplion that there would not be any fuither adverse impacl of pandemic on business operations of the company, where lhe associaled economic
jmpact of lhe pandemic is highly dependent on the variables that are difficult lo predict. {also refer note 55}

The managemenl believes that ihe Company has already secured the significanl amounl of additiona! financing required and will ba able to mest lhe obligations due in next 12 monlhs. Accordingly, the Cempany, has
prapared the Standslone financial slatements on a geing concem basis.

65 Covid-19 pandemic has impacted and conlinues to impact business operations Tn many counties due to lockdown guidelines issued by govemments including closure of holels, ravel bans, quarantines and other
emergency measures. With respect fo the Company, lhe operalions have been adversely impacted by pandemic. The Company witnessed softer ravenuss due lo the tockdawn imposed during the first six menths of the
year. With the unlocking <f restrictions, all the Company's business is expected lo gradually improve across all holels. During the second half of the year, the Company witnessed some signs of recovery of demand,
especially in leisure deslinations. Whilst there has been a second wave of the COVID-19 pandemic in the fast few menths in some Stales, there has also been increased vaccination drive by the Govemment and lhe
Company continues to closely menilor the situation. ‘

The Company expacts the demand for its servicas to pick up afbeil at a slower pace and is confident of recovery in business lo be driven by domestic leisure tourism, staycations, domestic business lravel and limited
international Iravel. The Company has assessed the polantial impact of COVID-18 on its capital and financlal resources, profitability, liquidity position, abilily to service debt and other financing arrangements, supply chain
ele. and has started taking necessary actions lo reduce lhe impact of the pandemic on its busingss operations. The Company, being one of the most affected sectors due to pandamic, has ptanned Lo to avait addilionat
borrowings under Emergency Cradit Line Guaraniee Schame (ECLGS) ntroduced by Government of India through Ministry of Finance on May 23, 2020 in order to mest its jong term and werking capftal requirements.
The Management believe that the the Company will be successful In raising addilional finance for achieving its financial projestions and, accordingly, have prepared the Standatone financial slalements on a going
concern basis. :

in addition, he Company has also assessed the potential impact of COVID-19 on the carrying value of property, plant & equipment {including right-of-use assaels and intangible assels), Defered lax assels (including
MAT credil srlillement), alc. appearing in the Standalona fnancial stalemenis of the Company based on fultire business and financial projections for each hotel, which takes into consideration the internal and external
sources of information, and based on current estimates, expects to recover the carrying amounts of these assels. Tho impact assessmen! of COVID 19 s 2 continuing process considernng the uncertainties associated
with tha nature and duration and the actual resulis may significantly differ from Ihe eslimates. The Company will continue to closely menitor any maleral changes to fulure economic conditions and any significant impact
of these changes would be recognized in the financial statements as and when these malerial changes to economic conditions arise.

56 a. Dne of lhe amployes of the Company al Hyderabad lecation misapproprialed the cash colisctad for membership fess from varous guests amounting lo Rs. 0.04 crores. The Company Issued a show cause notice
dated April 27, 2019 to lhe employes in this regard to which the employee, via his lawyer, responded on May 23, 2020 denying the allegations. The employee has been dismissed and FIR has been lodged against him on
June 3, 2020. The Company has also withheld his lerminal benelits and ftis estimated that the amount misappropriated may not excoed the terminal benefits dug (o the employee. The matter is currently pending.

b. The hotel property al Navi Mumbai sufiered a loss of Rs. 0.20 crares due to cyber fraud commitiad by one of the propesed customers. The Campany accepted advance for services through credit cards which ware
not cleared by $he merchant banker siling reasons such as 'inappropriate transasion’. The Mumbai location had also made payments to third parties (coslume designer and transtalor alc.) for the proposed event, on
pehalf of the proposed customer. The Gompany filed the FIR against the cuslomer and also lodged complaint with Depuly Commissioner of Police, Cyber Crime Investigation Cell and the matter is cumentty pending. The
Caornpany has meanwhile mads provision of 5.0 20 crores In the standalone financial statements.

§7 Previous period's figures are rearrangediregrouped to conform to current period's classificalion, wherever considered necessary.
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